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qm=;+= ljifo k]h g+=

!= 5}7f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf !

@= k|ltlglw lgo"Qm ug{] af/] lgj]bg @

#= ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg #

$= sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !)( pkbkmf $ sf] cltl/Qm ljj/0f &

%= :jtGq n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg !)

^= Statement of Financial Position !$

&= Statement of Profit or Loss !%

*= Statement of Comprehensive Income !^

(= Statement of Cash Flows !&

!)= Statement of Change in Equity !*

!!= Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss !(

!@= Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081 @)

!#= Disclosure and Additional Information #&

!$= Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) $)

!%= Operating Segment Information $!

!^= Disclosure effect of transition form previous GAAP to NFRSs $$

!&= Quarterly Variance $*

!*= Notes to the Financial Statements $(

!(= jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sflzt ug{] :jLs[lt ^)

@)= g]kfn /fi6« a}+snfO{ k]z ul/Psf] k|To'Q/ ^)

@!= zfvf sfof{nox? ^!
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g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt ;+:yf, k|fb]lzs:t/ -dw]z k|b]z_



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷)*! @

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt
:jl:ts n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, nxfg
l;/fxf .

ljifo M k|ltlgwL lgo'Qm u/]sf] ;DaGwdf .

dxf]bo,

============================ lhNnf ========================= d=g=kf=÷p=d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+= ======== a:g] d÷xfdL

===================================================== n] To; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] @)*! ;fn kf}if @& ut] zlgjf/sf lbg

x'g] 5}7f}+}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o k|lqmofdf ;xeflu x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pQm ;efdf efu

lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu ============================ lhNnf ========================= d=g=kf=÷p=d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+= ========

a:g] To; ljQLo ;+:yfsf z]o/ wgL >L ======================================================== z]o/ k|df0fkq g+=÷lxtu|fxL kl/ro g+=÷gful/stf

g+========================================nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlgwL dgf]lgt ul/ k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ .

lgj]bssf] k|ltlglwsf]

b:tvt M b:tvt M

gfd M gfd M

7]ufgf M 7]ufgf M

z]o/ k|df0f kq g+=÷lxtu|fxL vftf g+= z]o/ k|df0f kq g++=÷lxtu|fxL vftf g+=

z]o/ lsQf g+= ============== b]lv =========== ;Dd z]o/ lsQf g+= ============= b]lv ============== ;Dd

ldlt M ldlt M

b|i6Jo M of] lgj]bg ;fwf/0f ;ef x''g'eGbf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf k]z ul/;Sg' kg]{5 . Ps eGbf
al9 k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ sf] gfd pNn]v u/]df k|ltlglw kmf/d /4 ul/g]5 .



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷)*! #

:jl:ts n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] 5}7f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf
cWoIfHo"af6 k|:t't ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,

:jl:ts n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 sf]] 5}7f+}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt x'g'ePsf z]o/wgL nufot ;Dk"0f{
dxfg'efjx?nfO{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;+rfns ;ldlt / d]/f] cfˆgf] JolQmut tkm{af6 xflb{s :jfut ub{5' . o; cj;/df
oxfFx? ;dIf ut cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ;+:yfn] xfl;n u/]sf] pknlAw tyf ;fdgf ug'{ k/]sf r'gf}tLx? / rfn" cfly{s
jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] nflu lnOPsf /0fgLlt tyf sfo{qmd ;+rfngsf sfo{gLlt nufotsf ljljw ljifox?df b]xfo adf]lhdsf]
k|ltj]bg k|:t't ug{ kfpFbf dnfO{ v';L nfu]sf] 5 .

:jl:ts n3'ljQ sf] ;fdfGo k[i7 e"ld M

ljkGg ju{sf] pTyfg / ul/aL Go"lgs/0fsf] nflu ;+;f/ e/ Ps cfwf/e"t / ckl/xfo{ ;fwg aGg k'u]sf] n3'ljQ
sfo{qmd dfkm{t lg/k]If ul/aLsf] /]vfd"gL /x]sf u|fld0f e]usf kl/jf/nfO{ :t/Lo / lbuf] Pjd\ e/kbf]{ n3' ljQ ;]jf pknAw
u/fO{ pgLx?sf] cfly{s cj:yf psf:g] d'ne"t p4]Zosf ;fy ;/sf/sf] ul/aL Go"lgs/0f cleofgdf of]ubfg lbg] clek|fon]
s'n @% hgf z]o/ wgLx?af6 :yflkt o; :jl:ts n3'ljQ ldlt @)&% ;fn c;f]h @( ut] sDklg /lhi6«f/ sf] sfof{nodf
btf{ eO{ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 :jLs[t sfo{If]q -dw]; k|b]z_ leqsf rf/ lhNnf -;Kt/L, l;/fxf, wg'iff / dxf]Q/L_ df s'n !@
j6f zfvf sfof{nox?dfkm{t sl/a !@ xhf/ eGbf al9 kl/jf/ dfem ;fdflhs tyf cfly{s s[ofsnfkx? Dffkm{t ul/aL
Go"lgs/0f cleofg tyf ljQLo ;]jfdf kx'Fr a[l4 sfo{df k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;]jf k|jfx ub}{ cl3 al9/x]sf] 5 .

g]kfndf n3'ljQ sfo{qmd M

ljs6 tyf u|fdL0f If]qdf ljkGg ju{sf 3/b}nf]df uO{ pgLx?sf] cfly{s, ;dflhs pTyfg / cfo cfh{gsf] nflu clt
g} pkof]uL /x]sf] o; lsl;dsf] sfo{qmd xfn cfP/ %@ j6f n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?n] u/L/x]sf 5g\ . g]kfn /fi6« a}+s sf] @)*!
;fn c;f]h d;fGt ;Ddsf] tYofª\ssf] cfwf/df n3'ljQ sfo{qmd dfkm{t b]ze/ xfn @^ nfv &$ xhf/ C0fL u|fxs ;b:ox?
dfem $ vj{ !) ca{ eGbf al9 /sd shf{ k|jfx ePsf] 5 eg] ^) nfv eGbf al9 u|fxs ;box?Aff6 s'n ! vj{ &^ ca{eGbf
al9 art ;+sng ePsf] 5 . n3'ljQ sfo{qmd dfkm{t s'n @! xhf/ eGbf al9n] k|ToIf ?kdf /f]huf/L kfPsf 5g\ . o;sf
cltl/Qm @) j6f …sÚ ju{sf jfl0fHo a}+sx?, !& j6f …vÚ ju{sf ljsf; a}+sx? / !& j6f …uÚ ju{sf ljQ sDkgLx? ;d]tn]
k|ToIf ck|ToIf ?kdf n3'ljQ ;DaGwL sfo{df ;xof]u ul//x]sf 5g\ . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] @)*! ;fn c;f]h d;fGt;Dd
;fdflhs tyf cfly{s ?kn] pk]lIft tyf ljkGg ju{sf !@ xhf/eGbf al9 kl/jf/nfO{ dlxnf dfkm{t n3'ljQ ;]jf k'¥ofO{
pBdlzntf a[l4ul/ pgLx?sf] cfly{s tyf ;fdflhs hLjg:t/ psf:g dxTjk"0f{ e"ldsf v]Nb} cfO/x]sf] Joxf]/f cjut
u/fpg rfxG5' .

;dLIffjif{ -@)*)÷)*!_ sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M

;dLIff cfly{s jif{df lghL If]q tkm{ k|jfx ePsf] shf{sf] a[l4b/ cToGt} Go"g /x]sf] 5 . o'jfx? ljb]z knfog x'g',
d'b|f:kmLlt b/ a9g', cfly{s ultljlwx?df lzlyntf tyf a}+s ljQLo ;+:yfsf lj?4df c/fhs ultljlwx? nuftf/ a[l4 x'g'
cflb sf/0faf6 a}+lsË ultljwLx?df ;+s'rg b]vf k/]sf] xf] . o; calwdf b]zsf] a}+lsª If]qdf ePsf] t/ntf a[l4 ;Fu} yf]s
shf{sf] Jofhb/df ;d]t qmlds x|f; x'Fb} uof] kmn:j?k o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf]ifsf] nfutdf ;d]t s]lx ;fsf/fTds k|efj
kg{ uof] . n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lj?4sf] ljleGg ;d'xx?n] u/]sf] ljQLo cfGbf]ng cflbsf] sf/0fn] lgs} g} r'gf}tLk"0f{ cj:yfdf
ljQLo sf/f]af/x? ul/ cfly{s aif{ ;dfkg ul/of] . tyflk aiff{Gt ;Dddf Joj:yfkg kIfsf] lqmoflzntf tyf sd{rf/Lx?sf]
st{Jo lgi7tfsf sf/0f ;+:yfsf] ljQLo l:yltdf ;'wf/ Nofpg ;kmn ePsf] ePtfklg lgofds lgsfo g]=/f=a}+saf6 ePsf] u}/
:ynut cg'udgsf] sf/0f shf{df cltl/Qm hf]lvd yk tyf ;]jf z'Ns lkmtf{sf] sf/0fn] ubf{ aiff{Gtsf] ljQLo ljj/0f eg]
C0ffTds -gf]S;fg_ Joxf]g'{kg]{ l:ylt aGof] .

cf=a=@)*)÷)*! sf] aflif{s n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg eO{ n]vfk/LIfs s]=h]= P08 P;f]lzo6;\ af6 k|fKt k|ltj]bg,
jf;nft, gfkmf–gf]S;fg lx;fa Pjd\ gub k|jfx ljj/0fn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfly{s cj:yfsf] oyfy{ lrq0f ub{5 . pQm ljQLo
ljj/0fx? dfly uxg 5nkmn ul/ kfl/t ul/lbg' x'g]5 eGg] ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' . ca d oxfFx? ;dIf ;+:yfsf] cf=j= @)*)÷*!
sf] sfo{ k|ult tyf ljQLo l:yltsf] ;+lIfKt ljj/0f k|:t't ub{5' .



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷)*! $

k"FhL j[l4 M
z]o/ k"Flhsf] ;+/rgfdf ;ldIff calwdf s'g}klg kl/jt{g ePsf] 5}g, t;y{ cf=a= @)*)÷)*! sf] cGTodf sN; Og

P8efG; ;lxt s'n k"Flh ?=# s/f]8 $^ nfv %) xhf/ dfq sfod ePsf] 5 . sN; O{g P8efG;sf] /sd rfn' cf=a=sf] z'?d}
g]=/f=a}+saf6 z]o/ k"Flhdf kl/0ft ug{sf] nflu :jLs[lt k|fKt eO{ sDklg /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{noaf6 cBfalws ;d]t u/fO{
;lsPsf] Joxf]/f ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fpFb5' .

sfo{If]qsf] lj:tf/ M
@)&%r}q !@ ut]b]lv sf/f]af/ z'? u/]sf] o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;ldIff clalwdf sfo{If]q lj:tf/ u/]sf] 5}g . t;y{ cf=j=

@)*)÷*! sf] cGTo ;Dddf dw]z k|b]zsf $ lhNnfx? -;Kt/L, l;/fxf, wg'iff / dxf]Q/L_ df !@ j6f zfvf sfof{nox?
:yfkgf u/L sfo{If]q lj:tf/ u/]sf]5 eg] sfo{qmd k'u]sf] lhNnf % j6f sfod ePsf]] 5 .

dfgj ;+;fwgsf] ljsf; M
cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ljQLo ;+:yfn] zfvf k|d'v tyf lkmN8 sd{rf/Lx?sf] Ifdtf clej[l4 tyf pTk|]/0ffsf lglDt

cfjZostf tyf cf}lrTotfsf] cfwf/df Ifdtf clea[l4 tflndx?sf] cfof]hgf ul//x]sf] 5, tflndsf] lj:t[t ljj/0f ;+:yfsf]
j]j;fO{6df ;d]t k|sfzg ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfsf Joj:yfkg kIf / sd{rf/Lx?aLr lgoldt ;Dks{ tyf
;dGjo u/L ;+:yfsf] sfo{ ;~rfngdf Ps?ktf Nofpg] sfo{nfO{ cl3 a9fOPsf] 5 . sfo{qmd / sfo{If]qsf] lj:tf/ ;Fu} dfgj
;+;fwg ljsf; cfjZos /xg] ljifonfO{ dWogh/ ub}{ cf=a= @)*)÷*! df cfjZos hgzlQmx?sf] Aoj:yfkg, tflnd tyf
j[lQ ljsf;sf sfo{qmdx? ;+rfng u/L ;+:yfn] bIf hgzlQm lgdf{0fdf cfjZos kxn ul//x]sf] 5 . ;+:yfsf] ljsf; tyf
lb3{sfnLg ;kmntfsf lglDt sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] Ifdtf, bIftf, dgf]an tyf pTk|]/0ffsf] dxTjk"0f{ e"ldsf x'g] ePsf]n]
sd{rf/L 5gf}6, ;?jf, a9'jf, tflnd tyf j[lQ ljsf;sf lgldQ pko'Qm lglt Pj+ lgb]{lzsfx? tof/ u/L sfof{Gjog ul/b}
cfO{/x]sf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! sf] cGTo ;Dddf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf s'n sd{rf/L ;+Vof %@ hgf /x]sf 5g\ .

r"gf}ltx? M
ut cf=j @)*)÷*! df ;+:yfn] ;fdgf u/]sf d'Vo r'gf}ltx? lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf 5g\ M
s= c/fhs tTjx?åf/f ljQLo If]qdf km}nfO{Psf] ckmjfx sf] sf/0f ;ldIff calwdf ;d]t n3'ljQ If]q a9L k|efljt /xg' .
v= gLltut sl7gfO{sf sf/0f u|fxsx?n] ;lhn} kfpg] cfly{s >f]tdf c+s'z nfu]sf] sf/0f lt u|fxsx?sf] cfly{s sf/f]af/

rnfodfg x'g g;ls lgoldt ls:tf e'QmfgLdf ;d:of .
u= ljleGg ;dodf gLltut kl/jt{gaf6 >[hgf x'g] k|lts'n cj:yfx? .
3= n3'ljQ If]qdf a9bf] ;d:ofsf] sf/0f yf]s shf{ k|efj ug{] a}+s ljQLo ;+:yfx?n] shf{ ;fk6L pknAw u/fpg grfxg' .

cf=j= @)&(÷*) Pj+ @)*)÷*! df ljQLo l:yltsf] ;+lIfKt t'ngfTds ljj/0f M
?= xhf/df

qm=;+= ljj/0f ut jif{             
-cf=j=@)&(÷*)_ 

;dLIff cjlw      
-cf=j=@)*)÷*!_ 

a[l4 a[l4 
k|ltzt 

! z]o/ k"FhL #$,^%) #$,^%) - 0% 

@ hu]8f tyf sf]ifx? @$,$@$ @),$)^ (4,018) (16)% 
# ltg{ afFsL shf{ ;fk6 ##@,((^ $$%,&$! 112,745 34% 

$ lgIf]k bfloTj !@%,##% (@,!$% (33,190) 26% 

% shf{ ;fk6 %)^,)#* %&^,$@( 70,391 14% 

^ v'b d'gfkmf $(#^ -!#&*_ (5314) (108)% 
& c;'nL b/ (*=%& k|ltzt (!=(@ k|ltzt 6.65 7% 
 ;]jf lj:tf/     
! zfvf ;+Vof !@ !@ - 0% 
@ lhNnf % % - 0% 
# s]Gb| (^% (^^ 1 0.12% 

$ ;d"x $,#%$ $@(^ (58) (1)% 

% ;b:o ;+Vof !#,$%@ !@@)^ (1246) (9)% 

^ C0fL ;+Vof ^,#(& %%!$ (883) (14)% 

 



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷)*! %

ª= cj}wflgs ?kdf c/fhs tj/n] ul7t ;d'xx?n] s]Gb|a}7sdf pkl:yt eO{ s]Gb| a}7s ;+rfngdf afwf k'¥ofpg] ;fy} c;n
u|fxsnfO{ ;d]t shf{ ldgfxfsf] k|nf]eg lbO{ sfo{qmd ;+rfngdf afwf c8rg l;h{gf ug]{ sf]l;;\ ug'{ .

r= ljQLo If]qdf eO{/x]sf] c/fhs ultljlwnfO{ ;/sf/L tj/af6 ;d]t k|efjsf/L ?kdf s'g} sfo{jfxL gu/]sf] sf/0f To:tf
;+ul7t ;d'xsf JolQmx?n] sd{rf/Lx?dfly ef}lts sfo{jfxL ;d]t ug]{ u/]sf] sf/0f sd{rf/Lx?df O{Hht k|lti7f tyf
lhpwgsf] 8/qf; l;h{gf ePsf] .

5= :yflgo lgsfox?af6 ;d]t xfnsf] ljQLo If]qsf] ;d:of ;fdfwfgsf] nfuL kxn gu/L pQm ;d:ofx?nfO{ a9fjf lbg]
sfo{x? eO{/x]sf] .

h xfnsf] cj:yfdf lkmN8 :t/df sd{rf/Lx?n] cfkm'nfO{ ;'/lIft dx;'; gu/]sf] sf/0f sd{rf/Lx? n3'ljQ If]qaf6g}
knfog x'g' .

@)*! ;fn d+l;/ dlxgf;Dd rfn" aif{sf] pknAwL / eljiodf rfNg'kg]{ sbdsf] jf/]df ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ffM
b]zJofkL ?kdf ljleGg If]qdf cj}wflgs ?kdf ;+ul7t ;d'xx?sf] k|efj, g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 lnO{Psf /0fgLltsf]

cfwf/df rfn' cfly{s aif{df o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfsf] Joj:ffonfO{ lj:tf/ ug{] eGbfklg sfo{qmddf u'0f:t/Lotf a[l4sf]
pB]Zo lnO{ rfn' cfly{s aif{df u|fxs ;b:oa[l4 tkm{ cToGt} Go"g nIo lnOPsf] 5 . sfo{qmdsf] u'0f:t/Lotf a[l4 tyf
sd{rf/Lx?af6 x'g] cfly{s clgoldtt, tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d;nGb nfutnfO{ Go'lgs/0fsf] nfuL ljQLo ;+:yfn] l8lh6n
sf/f]af/nfO{ k|fyldstfdf /fvL u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] sfg'gL sfuhftx?nfO{ l8lh6n dfWodaf6 ;'/lIft ug{, sd{rf/Lx?sf]
;Dk'0f{ /]s{8x?nfO{ Joj:yfkg ug{ tyf kf/bzL{ sf/f]af/sf] nfuL k|of]u ub}{ cfPsf] ;km6j]o/df yk ;]jf vl/b ul/
sf/f]af/nfO{ k|efjsf/L Joj:yfkg ul/Psf] 5 . ljutsf] cg'ejaf6 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljsf; u/]sf ;]jfd'vL ;'ljwfx? tyf
u|fxs ;b:ox?n] ljQLo ;+:yf k|lt b]vfPsf] ;xefuLtf / pT;fxn] g} xfn;Dd o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ cfkm\gf]sfo{qmd lj:tf/
ug{ ;kmntf k|fKt ePsf] 5 . xfnsf] ;dodf hg;d'bfodf n3'ljQ sfo{qmd k|lt a9b} uPsf] gsf/fTds dgf]a[ltnfO{ kl/j{tg
ug{sf] nfuL o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] lkmN8:t/df u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] ufFp6f]ndf g} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] u|fxs, ltgsf cleefjs tyf
:yfgLotxsf k|ltlglwx?sf] pkl:ytLdf ljQLo ;fIf/tf sfo{qmdx? ;+rfng ul/Psf] 5 ;fy} gofFk':tfdf ;d]t n3'ljQ
sfo{qmddf af/] ;sf/fTds phf{ pTkGg xf];\ / gofF k':tfn] ;d]t cfly{s sf/f]af/nfO{ ljWofyL{ hLjgaf6 g} Joj:yfkg ug{
l;s'g eGg] pB]Zo /fvL :s'n, sn]hdf ljWofyL{ efO{jlxgLx?df ljQLo ;r]tgf sfo{qmdx? ;+rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . xfnsf]
kl/l:ytLdf u|fxs ;b:ox? ;fd'lxs hdfgLnfO{ Pp6f af]emsf] ?kdf lnO{/x]sf] sf/0f xfn o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljgflwtf] ;]jf
;Fu;Fu} lwtf] hdfgLsf cfwf/df shf{ nufgLnfO{ k|fyldstfdf /fvL Joj;fo lj:tf/ ul//x]sf] 5 eg] ;b:ox?sf] art ug{]
aflgnfO{ lasf; ug{ tyf ax'a}+ls+uaf6 k|efljt ;b:ox?nfO{ Ps ;+:yf Ps u|fxssf] gLltdf cfj4 u/fpg] u/L ljleGg
Joj;fo of]hgf agfO{ sf/f]af/ lj:tf/ ul//x]sf] 5 .

g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 # aif{ ;Dd zfvf vf]Ng /f]s nufOPsf]n] rfn' cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ df zfvf lj:tf/ sf] s'g}klg
of]hgf /flvPsf] 5}g . cf=a=@)*!÷)*@ df ;b:o tkm{ ! xhf/ $ ;o $) ;b:o lgisfzg ul/ cf=a=sf] cGt;Dd afFls
;b:o ;+Vof !) xhf/ ^ ;o *( sfod ug]{ nIo lnOPsf]5 . ;f]lx calwdf % ;o &^ v'b C0fL ;b:o x|f; eO{ hDdf C0fL
;b:o $ xhf/ * ;o (@ k'¥ofO{g] 5 . cf=a=@)*!÷)*@ df nufgLdf /lx/x]sf] shf{ ?=@& s/f]8 a[l4 ul/ *$ s/f]8 k'¥ofpg]
nIo lnOPsf] 5 . ut aif{sf] t'ngfdf shf{sf] a[l4b/ $( k|ltzt sfod x'g]5 . To;} ul/ art tkm{ rfn' cf=a= sf] d+l;/
d;fGt ;Dddf ( s/f]8 ^) nfv /x]sf]df yk # s/f]8 a[l4 ul/ afFls /x]sf] art ?=!@ s/f]8 #@ nfv sfod ul/g] nIo
/flvPsf] 5 . cfGtl/s tyf jfXo k|lts'ntfsf sf/0f ;f] nIo xfl;n ug{ sl7g x'g] b]lvPdf c4{aflif{s ;ldIff dfkm{t ah]6
;+zf]wgsf] k|lqmofdf nlug] 5 .

@)*) ;fn d+l;/ d;fGtsf] t'ngfdf @)*! ;fn d+l;/ d;fGt;Ddsf] ljQLo cj:yf o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 .

qm=;+= ljj/0f @)*)d+l;/ d;fGt @)*!d++l;/ d;fGt a[l4÷-sld_ k|ltzt 

!= u|fxs ;b:o ;+Vof 13066 12099 (967) (7%) 

@= lgIf]k -?_ 10,84,75,166/- 9,60,93,962/- (1,23,81,204) (11%) 

#= shf{ tyf ;fk6 -?=_ 50,45,59,257/- 61,54,66,180/- 11,09,06,923 22% 

$= cfDbflg -?=_ 3,42,92,895/- 3,57,36,279/- 14,43,384 4% 

%= vr{ -?=_ 4,33,32,683/- 3,97,02,517/- (36,30,166) (8%) 

^= gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ ?= (90,39,788) (39,66,238) (50,73,550) (56%) 
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cGo eflj sfo{qmdx? M

cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] ljsf; M
o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;+:yfut ;'zf;g / cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ pRr dxTj lbO{ ;f] lj?4 z'Go ;xgzLntfsf]

gLlt lnOPsf] 5 . ;~rfns :t/Lo hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt / ;Dklt
z'l4s/0f cg'udg ;ldltsf ;fy} Joj:yfksLo:t/sf] cfly{s lgb]{zg ;ldlt, vl/b ;ldlt, >d ;ldlt, Joj:yfkg ;ldlt,
:jf:Yo ;ldlt nufPt ljleGg ;ldlt÷pk ;ldltx? lqmoflzn /x]sf 5g\ . ;a} ;ldlt÷pk ;ldltx?sf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/
:ki6?kdf kl/eflift ul/ nfu' ul/Psf]n] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;Ifd tyf k|efjsf/L /x]sf] 5 . k|rlnt sfg"g tyf g]kfn
/fi6« a}+sn] hf/L u/]sf lgb]{zgsf] kl/kfngf ub}{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;du| lqmofsnfk ;~rfng ul/Psf] 5 . cfGtl/s tyf jfXo
n]vfk/LIf0f / ;'kl/j]IfsLo k|ltj]bgdf cf}+NofOPsf s}lkmotx?sf] ;dLIff u/L ;~rfns ;ldltn] cfGt/Ls lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf]
k|efjsf/Ltfsf nflu ;do÷;dodf Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbFb} cfPsf] 5 .

;+:yfut ;'zf;g M
o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfod ug{sf lglDt ;+rfns ;ldltsf kbflwsf/Lx?sf] cWoIftfdf ul7t

ljleGg cfGtl/s ;ldltx?af6 lgoldt ?kdf zfvfx?sf] lg/LIf0f tyf sd{rf/Lx?;Fu cGt/lqmof sfo{qmd ul/Psf] 5 eg]
Joj:yfkg ;ldltaf6 ;d]t o; ljifonfO{ k|fyldstfdf /fvL lgoldt ?kdf zfvf sfof{nox?sf] cg'udg tyf n]vfkl/If0f
sfo{x? ;DkGg x'b} cfPsf] 5 . o;} qmddf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]xL sd{rf/Lx?n] u/]sf] cfly{s clgoldttfsf] cj:yfdf To:tf
sd{rf/Lx? lj?4 sfg'gL sfo{jfxLx? ul/Psf] 5, tyf cGo ;'zf;g;Fu ;DalGwt gLlt lgodkfngf gug{] sd{rf/Lx?nfO{
;+:yfn] kbd'Qm ;d]t u/]sf] 5 .  o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljBdfg P]g sfg"g tyf gLlt lgod / lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af6 k|fKt
lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd cfˆgf] Joj;fo ;+rfng ub}{ cfPsf] Aoxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' . ;fy} ljQLo ;+:yfsf z]o/wgLx?
k|lt ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt / Joj:yfkg ;ldlt k"0f{ ?kdf hjfkmb]xL / pQ/bfoL /xg]5 elg ljZjf; lbnfpg rfxG5' .

k|ljlw pkof]u M
;dofg';f/ ablnFbf] cfw'lgs o'udf o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;d]t Joj;flos ?kdf k|lt:kwf{ ug{ ;sf]; eGg] efjsf ;fy

rfn' cfly{s aif{df ;+:yfn] k|of]u ub{} cfPsf] ;km6j]o/df cfw'lgs k|ljlwx? yk u/]sf] 5 eg] zfvf sfof{nosf] k|efjsf/L
lgl/If0f tyf ;'/IffnfO{ k|fyldstfdf /fvL ;Dk'0f{ zfvf sfof{nox?df l;l; l6le, l8lh6n xflh/L, u|fxs ;b:ox?;Fu ul/g]
sfg'gL sfuhftx?sf] ;'/Iffsf] lglDt l8lh6n Joj:yfkgx?df sbd rfn]sf] 5 eg] o;nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbb}F cfufdL lbgdf
u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] cfly{s sf/f]af/nfO{ yk kf/bzL{ agfpgsf] nfuL :jl:ts a}+ls+u PK; nufot ljleGg l8lh6n e'QmfgL
;]jfx?;Fu ;Demf}tf u/L k|ljlw If]qdf ;d]t ;+:yfnfO{ cu|;/ agfpg] of]hgf /x]sf] Joxf]/f oxfFx?;dIf hfgsf/L u/fpg
rfxG5' .

;fdflhs If]qdf :jl:ts n3'ljQ M
o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfly{s sf/f]af/;Fu} cfkmgf u|fxs ;b:ox?nfO{ ;fdflhs If]qaf6 ;d]t nfeflGjt agfpg] pB]Zo

/fvL ljleGg :yfgLo txx?df ;fdflhs sfo{qmd cGtu{t ljQLo ;fIf/tf, :jf:Yo lzlj/, Joj;flos tflnd nufot cGo
ljifoj:t'df cfwf/Lt eO{ ;fdflhs sfo{qmd ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] Joxf]/f ;a}df hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' . ;fy} cfufdL ;dodf
;d]t o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;fdflhs If]qnfO{ k|fyldstf lbb} ljleGg c:ktfnx?;Fu ;xsfo{ ul/ cfkmgf u|fxs ;b:ox?nfO{
:jf:Yo If]qdf, ljBfno tyf SofDk;x?;Fu ;xsfo{ ul/ lzIff If]qdf tyf cGo tflnd s]Gb|x?;Fu ;xsfo{ ul/ Joj;foLs
If]qdf ;d]t u|fxs ;b:ox?nfO{ nfeflGjt agfO{ qm]l86 Kn; sfo{qmdsf] ?kdf :jl:ts n3'ljQsf] klxrfg agfpg] nIo /x]sf]
Joxf]/f ;d]t oxfFx?nfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' .

cfef/ k|s6
5}7f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] cj;/df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :yfkgf sfnb]lv ;+:yfnfO{ ;xof]u k'¥ofpFb} cfpg'ePsf] z]o/wgL
dxfg'efjx?, ;b:ox?, sd{rf/Lju{, n]vfk/LIfs tyf g]kfn ;/sf/sf lgsfox? cy{ dGqfno, g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, sDkgL
/lhi6«f/sf] sfo{fno, lgIf]k tyf shf{ ;'/If0f sf]if Pj+ shf{ ;"rgf s]Gb| nufot;+:yfsf] Joj;fo lj:tf/df k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf
?kn] ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] ;Dk"0f{ lgsfox?k|lt s[t1tf k|s6 ub{5' . ;fy} ;+:yfsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t tyf ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?sf]
st{Aolgi7f, nuglzntf Pjd\ sl7g kl/>dsf] ;/fxgf ub{5' .
wGojfb Û

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6
;To gf/fo0f emf

cWoIf
ldlt M @)*!÷)(÷@&
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sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !)( pkbkmf $ cg';f/sf] cltl/Qm ljj/0f
-s_ ljut aif{sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M

cfly{s aif{ @)*)÷*! sf] ;+lIfKt cfly{s ljj/0f dfly g} k|:t't ul/;lsPsf] 5 .
-v_ /fli6«o tyf cGt{/fli6«o kl/:yLltaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/]sf] eP ;f] c;/ M

;dLIff cfly{s jif{df a}+lÍË If]qdf ljutdf b]lvPsf] h:tf] t/ntf ;+s6 ;dfwfg pGd"v ePsf] sf/0f Jofhb/ 36g uO{
sf]ifsf] nfut df ;d]t ;sf/fTds k|efj kg{ uof], kmn:j?k pQm cfly{s aif{ -@)*)÷)*!_ n3'ljQ If]qn] s]lx /fxt
dx;'; u¥of] . ;fy} ;f]lx cf=a=df ;+:yfaf6 C0f lnPsf C0fL ;b:ox? dWo] s]lx ;b:ox? cglws[t ?kdf ;+ul7t eO{
shf{ ltlb{g eGg] h:tf u}/ lhDd]jf/ cleJolQm lbFb} lxF8g]x?df ;d]t sld cfof] . c:j:y k|lt:kwf{ al9/x]sf] / ;b:o
tyf shf{ sf/f]jf/df bf]xf]/f]kgf ;d]t al9/x]sf] ca:yfdf g]=/f=a}+s 4f/f Ps JolQm b''O{ n3'ljQ lgtL NofPkl5
bL3{sfndf t ;b:osf] ax'a}+lsË sf/f]af/ ;DalGw ;d:of ;dfwfg x'g] ePtfklg tTsfnsf] nflu eg] pQm lg0f{o
sfof{Gjog ug{ lgs}g} r'gf}ltk"0f{ x'g] b]lvG5 . o:tf] cj:yfdf ;+:yfsf] u|fxs ;b:o ;+Vof a[l4 tyf Joj;fo lj:tf/ ug]{
sfo{df yk afwf Jojwfg cfO{kg]{ b]lvG5 .

-u_ k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt;Dd rfn' aif{sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff M
o; ;+:yfsf] cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ sf] d+l;/ dlxgfsf] cGt ;Dddf s'n Jofh tyf z'Ns cfDbfgL ?=3,57,36,279/-

/x]sf]df Jofh tyf Joj:yfkg vr{ jfkt ?= 3,97,02,517/-s'n vr{ eO{ ?=(39,66,238) cIf/]kL ?= pgfGrfln;
nfv l5of;l7\7 xhf/ b'O;o c8lt;dfq_ ;+rfng gf]S;fg /x]sf] 5 . ;f]lx calwdf nufgLdf /lx/x]sf] shf{ /sd
?= 61,54,66,180/--cIf/]lk Ps;l7 s/f]8 rf}aGg nfv l5of;l7\7 xhf/ Ps;o cl; dfq_ /x]sf] 5 . ;+:yfsf]
cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ sf] ;+lIfKt aflif{s sfo{qmd tyf eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fx?sf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf]
cjwf/0ff dfly g} k|:t't u/LPsf] 5 .

-3_ sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus jf Joj;flos ;DaGw M
o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;a} a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?;Fu Joj;flos ?kdf cfkm\gf] ;DaGw lj:tf/ ub}{ n}hfg] 5 .
To;}ul/ ;+:yfut ;'zf;g,Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/L aLr ;'dw'/ ;DaGw sfod /fVg k|lta4 /x]sf] 5 .

-ª_ ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0f M
o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf ;ldIff aif{df Ps kl/jt{g ePsf] 5, pQm kl/jt{gsf] sf/0f ;fwf/0f
;efsf] lgjf{rgaf6 gofF sfo{sfnsf] nflu lgjf{lrt x'g' xf] .
;+:yfsf] at{dfg ;~rfnsx?df lgDgfg';f/sf JolQmx? sfod /xg'ePsf] 5 .
>L ;To gf/fo0f emf cWoIf
8f= k|df]b s'df/ emf ;~rfns
>L ;'wfFz' z]v/ emf ;~rfns
>Ldlt lx/f l3ld/] ;~rfns -lgjt{dfg M >L /lj;]g ;fx_
>L ljgf]bfgGb emf :jtGq ;~rfns

-r_ sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx? M
g]kfn /fi6« a}+s nufotsf lgofds lgsfon] ug]{ lgodg, lgb]{zgsf] kl/jt{gaf6 l;h{gf x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdk|lt klg
;hu /xg' k/]sf] 5 . o:tf] cj:yfdf ;+:yfsf] ;du| hf]lvd sd ug'{kg]{ cfjZostf Psflt/ 5Fb}5 eg] k"FhLsf]
kl/df0f cg'?ksf] Jo;fo lj:tf/ u/L z]o/wgLx?sf] nufgLdf oyf]lrt k|ltkmn k|fKt ug'{kg]{ csf]{ r'gf}lt 5 . ut
cf=a=sf] t'ngfdf rfn' cf=a= sf] k|yd / bf];|f] q}odf;df t/ntf kof{Kt x'g uO{ ljQLo ;|f]tsf] nfutdf sld
cfPsf]5 h'g rfn' aif{el/ g} 36bf]b/df /xg] cg'dfg ug{ ;lsG5 . ljutdf n3'ljQ If]qdf b]lvPsf] c/fhs
ultljwLn] ubf{ ;+:Yffsf] ljQLo ;+t'ng g} ljlu|g] cj:yfdf k'Ug] ;Defjgf klg sfod} /x]sf] 5, h;sf] kmn:j?k
shf{sf] ls:tf gltg]{ k|a[lt lbgfg'lbg a9b} uO{/x]sf]n] ;+:yfsf] ;du| ljQLo cj:yfdf g} k|To]If k|efj kl//x]sf]
5 . ;dofg's'n pko'Qm /0fgLltx? canDag u/L tdfd k|lts'ntfx?sf ljr ;+:yfnfO{ ;kmntfk'j{s cl3
a9fpg] sfo{ cfufdL lbgdf lgs} r'gf}ltk'0f{ b]lvG5 . tyflk o; ls;Ldsf r'gf}ltx?sf] ;fdgf ub}{ cl3 a9g
k|lta4 5f}+ .
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-5_ n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof M
kfFrf+} aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf lgo'Qm KJ & Associates n] ut cf=a=@)*)÷)*! sf] n]vfk/LIf0f ug'{ePsf] 5 . o;
k|ltj]bgsf ;fy ;+nUg n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg / ljQLo k|ltj]bgx?n] ;+:yfsf] ljQLo cj:yfsf] oyfy{ l:ytLsf]
lrq0f u/]sf] 5 . n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg dfly ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 s'g} pNn]Vo l6Kk0fL /x]sf] 5}g .

-h_ nfef+z afF8kmfF8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd M
ut cf=a= @)*)÷)*! df ;+:yf v'b gf]S;fgLdf ePsf] tyf ;j{;fwf/0fsf] nflu z]o/ hf/L gul/Psf]n] z]o/
nfef+z l;kmfl/; u/LPsf] 5}g .

-em_ z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof,To:tf] z]o/sf] c+lst d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj} ;f]
afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ ljqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd
tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/ afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M z]o/ hkmt ul/Psf] 5}g .

-`_ ljut cfly{s aif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s aif{sf] cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf]
k'g/fjnf]sg M o; ;+:yfsf] ;xfos sDkgL 5}g .

-6_ sDkgL tyf To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s aif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]jf/x? / ;f] calwdf sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df
cfPsf] s'g} dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{g M o; ;+:yfsf] ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf] .

-7_ ljut cfly{s aif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L M hfgsf/L gePsf] .
-8_ ljut cfly{s aif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / sDkgLsf] z]o/

sf/f]af/df lghx? ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L M

qm=;+= gfd, kb z]o/ :jfldTj :jfldTj k|ltzt 
-s_ ;~rfnsx? JolQmut 

!= >L ;To gf/fo0f emf #)))) lsQf 15% 
@= 8f= k|df]b s'df/ emf #))) lsQf 1.50% 
#= >L ;'wfFz' z]v/ emf @))) lsQf 1% 
$= >LdtL lx/f l3ld/] !^))) lsQf 8% 
%= >L ljgf]bfgGb emf :jtGq ;~rfns 
-s_ kbflwsf/Lx? JolQmut 

!= >L lw/]Gb| nfn s0f{, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t  gePsf] 
@= >L tf]ofgfy kf]v/]n, gfoa k|aGws gePsf] 

 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?sf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df s'g} ;+nUgtf ePsf] hfgsf/L ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ 5}g .

-9_ ljut cfly{s aif{df sDkgL;Fu ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{sf]
af/]df pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/f M cGo hfgsf/L k|fKt gePsf] .

-0f_ sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}+n] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfkm\gf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof / c+lst d"No
tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/]afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd M z]o/x?sf] k'gM vl/b sfo{ gePsf] .

-t_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f M
o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] xfn shf{ ckn]vg lgtL, art tyf shf{ ljlgodfjnL, cfly{s ljlgodfjnL, sd{rf/L ;]jf
ljlgodfjnLsf ;fy} ltgLx?;Fu cfjZos kg]{ ljifox? canDag ub}{ cfPsf] / shf{ ;ldlt, Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, hf]lvd
Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, cfly{s lgb]{zg ;ldlt, kb k'lt{ ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 / eljiodf cfjZos kg]{
gLlt lgodx? th'{df tyf tbg'?k sfo{Gjog ub}{ nlug] Pjd\ ;+:yfsf] cfGt/Ls lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO cem ;'b[9 agfpFb}
nlug] 5 .

-y_ ljut cfly{s aif{sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M
sd{rf/L vr{ M ?=@,)#,*$,(&$÷))
cGo ;~rfng vr{ M ?=%!,^^,)^@÷))
hDdf vr{ M ?=@,%%,%!,)#^÷))
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-b_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf sfd
sf/afxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f
xfn sfod /x]sf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox? b]xfoadf]lhd /x]sf 5g\ M
!= >L ljgf]bfgGb emf, :jtGq ;~rfns – ;+of]hs
@= >L ;'wfFz' z]v/ emf, ;~rfns – ;b:o
#= >L u0f]z u'?ª, clws[t – ;b:o ;lrj
n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt -;~rfns dfq}_ ;b:ox?nfO{ @%))÷– a}7s eQf÷k|lt a}7s tyf zfvf e|d0f jfkt b}lgs e|d0f
eQf ?= #,)))÷– tyf oftfoft vr{ afx]s cGo s'g}klg kfl/>lds÷;'ljwf lbOPsf] 5}g .
o; ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg, jfXo n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgsf] ;dLIff u/L ;f] af6 cfPsf ;Nnfx
;'emfj tyf lgb]{zgx?sf] kl/kfngf eP gePsf] d"Nofª\sg ug]{, tyf pQm k|ltj]bgx?sf] ;dLIff u/L ;'wf/sf nflu
cfkm\gf] ;Nnfx ;'emfjx? lbg] u/]sf] 5 .

-w_ ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf]
kmd{ , sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f] s'/f M s]lx gePsf]

-g_ ;~rfns , k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sdM
  – ;~rfnsx?nfO{ a}7s eQf jfkt ?= @,!*,%))÷– b}lgs e|d0f vr{ ;d]t cGo ?= !,#$,@@)÷– ul/ hDdf e'QmfgL

ul/Psf] /sd ?= #,%@,&@)÷–
  – k|d'v sfo{{sf/L clws[tnfO{ kfl/>lds eQf tyf ;'ljwf jfkt e'QmfgL ul/Psf] hDdf ?=!#,%),#@!÷–
-k_ z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFls /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M xfn nfef+z ljt/0f gePsf]
-km_ bkmf !$! adflhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f M gePsf]
-a_ bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f M bkmf !&% adf]lhd s'g} sf/f]jf/ gePsf] .
-e_ sDkgL P]g @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg'gadf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg'kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/f M v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo

s'/fx? gePsf] .
-d_ cGo cfjZos s'/fx? M 5}gg\ .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6
     ;To gf/fo0f emf
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Figures in NPR

Particulars Note As at 
31st Ashadh 2081

Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080

Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079

Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 4.1 24,080,004               17,328,125            38,322,592            
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 3,000,000                2,350,000              3,250,000              
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 -                          -                        -                        
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 -                          -                        -                        
Other Trading Assets 4.5 -                          -                        -                        
Loans and Advance to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 -                          -                        -                        
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 576,428,599             503,222,990          692,687,306          
Investment Securities 4.8 -                          -                        -                        
Current Tax Assets 4.9 1,199,834                1,865,640              3,465,484              
Investment Property 4.10 -                          -                        -                        
Property and Equipment 4.11 4,856,734                2,315,485              3,172,321              
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 855,875                   569,486                 624,035                 
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 1,202,431                -                        -                        
Other Assets 4.14 1,513,240                1,026,591              2,244,266              
Total Assets 613,136,717             528,678,317          743,766,003          
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 -                          -                        -                        
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 -                          -                        -                        
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 -                          -                        -                        
Deposits from Customers 4.18 92,144,759               125,334,869          190,010,843          
Borrowing 4.19 445,740,919             332,996,152          472,253,954          
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 -                          -                        -                        
Provisions 4.20 -                          -                        -                        
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.12 -                          492,097                 1,094,884              
Other Liabilities 4.21 15,730,350               7,861,763              22,004,854            
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 -                          -                        -                        
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 -                          -                        -                        
Total Liabilities 553,616,028             466,684,881          685,364,535          
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 34,650,000               34,650,000            34,650,000            
Share Premium -                          -                        -                        
Retained Earnings 4,464,539                13,518,125            13,575,303            
Reserves 4.25 20,406,149               13,825,311            10,176,165            
Total Equity 59,520,689               61,993,436            58,401,468            
Total Liabilities and Equity 613,136,717             528,678,317          743,766,003          
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26 -                          -                        -                        
Net assets value per share 172                         179                       169                       
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.              As per our report of even date

Mr. Satya Narayan Jha                         Dr. Pramod Kumar Jha                    Mr. Sudhansu Sekhar Jha   CA. Sijan Bohara        

Mrs. Heera Ghimire                      Mr. Binoda Nand Jha                  Mr. Dhirendra Lal Karn        Mr. Toyanath Pokhrel
Director                                                   Independent Director                   Chief Executive Officer       Chief Finance Officer                            

Date: 13 Ashwin, 2081
Place: Lahan - 8, Siraha

                                                                                                                                                                          K.J. & Associates
                                                                                                                                                                   Chartered Accountants

Chairman                                                Director                                               Director                                                Partner

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As on 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Lahan-8, Siraha
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Figures in NPR

Particulars Note Year ended
 31st Ashadh 2081

Restated* Year ended
 31st Ashadh 2080

Interest Income 4.27 79,770,723              85,123,647                    
Interest Expense 4.28 (58,243,324)             (59,048,253)                   
Net Interest Income 21,527,399              26,075,394                    
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 8,946,301               10,160,888                    
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 (1,054,014)              (1,956,557)                     
Net Fee and Commission Income 7,892,287               8,204,331                      
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 29,419,686              34,279,725                    
Net Trading Income 4.31 -                         -                               
Other Operating Income 4.32 -                         -                               
Total Operating Income 29,419,686              34,279,725                    
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 3,782,252               (823,030)                       
Net Operating Income 25,637,434              35,102,756                    
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 (20,384,974)             (20,869,570)                   
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 (5,166,062)              (8,030,629)                     
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.36 (2,467,044)              (1,029,266)                     
Operating Profit (2,380,647)              5,173,291                      
Non Operating Income 4.37 -                         -                               
Non Operating Expense 4.38 -                         -                               
Profit before Income Tax (2,380,647)              5,173,291                      
Income Tax Expense 4.39 (1,002,770)              1,568,352                      

Current Tax 691,758                  2,171,139                      
Deferred Tax (1,694,528)              (602,787)                       

Profit for the period (1,377,877)              3,604,939                      
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Microfinance (1,377,877)              3,604,939                      
Profit for the year (1,377,877)              3,604,939                      
Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (3.98)                      10.40                            
Diluted earnings per share                       (3.98)                             10.40 
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.              As per our report of even date

Date: 13 Ashwin, 2081
Place: Lahan - 8, Siraha

Mr. Satya Narayan Jha                    Dr. Pramod Kumar Jha                 Mr. Sudhansu Sekhar Jha        CA. Sijan Bohara        

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss 
For the year ended  31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Director                                            Independent Director                      Chief Executive Officer                  Chief Finance Officer                            

Chairman                                         Director                                            Director                                               Partner
                                                                                                                                                                            K.J. & Associates
                                                                                                                                                                      Chartered Accountants

Mrs. Heera Ghimire                   Mr. Binoda Nand Jha                     Mr. Dhirendra Lal Karn             Mr. Toyanath Pokhrel

Lahan-8, Siraha
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Figures in NPR

Particulars Note Year ended
 31st Ashadh 2081

Restated* Year 
ended

 31st Ashadh 2080
Profit for the year              (1,377,877)                   3,604,939 
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value -                            
Gains / (Losses) on Revaluation -                        
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans -                        -                            
Income tax relating to above items -                        -                            
Net other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss -                        -                            
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gains/ (Losses) on cash flow hedge -                        -                            
Exchange gains/ (Losses) (arising from translationg financial assets of foreign operation) -                        -                            
Income tax relating to above items -                        -                            
Reclassify to Profit or Loss -                        -                            
Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss -                        -                            
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax -                        -                            
Total Comprehensive income for the year (1,377,877)             3,604,939                  
Total Comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholder of the Microfinance (1,377,877)             3,604,939                  
Non controlling interest -                        -                            
Total Comprehensive income for the period (1,377,877)             3,604,939                  
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.              As per our report of even date

Date: 13 Ashwin, 2081
Place: Lahan - 8, Siraha

                                                                                                                                                                                              Chartered Accountants

Mrs. Heera Ghimire                         Mr. Binoda Nand Jha                            Mr. Dhirendra Lal Karn                          Mr. Toyanath Pokhrel
Director                                            Independent Director                                  Chief Executive Officer                           Chief Finance Officer                            

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended  31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Mr. Satya Narayan Jha                    Dr. Pramod Kumar Jha                         Mr. Sudhansu Sekhar Jha                     CA. Sijan Bohara        
          Chairman                                             Director                                                       Director                                                Partner
                                                                                                                                                                                              K.J. & Associates

Lahan-8, Siraha
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Figures in NPR

Particulars Year ended
 31st Ashadh 2081

Restated* Year ended
 31st Ashadh 2080

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 79,770,723                   85,123,647                   
Fees and other income received 8,946,301                     10,160,888                   
Dividend received -                              -                              
Receipts from other operating activities -                              -                              
Interest paid (58,243,324)                  (59,048,253)                  
Commission and fees paid (1,054,014)                    (1,956,557)                    
Cash payment to employees (20,384,974)                  (20,869,570)                  
Other expense paid (7,633,107)                    (8,030,629)                    
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,401,605                     5,379,526                     
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (650,000)                      900,000                       
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions -                              -                              
Other trading assets -                              -                              
Loans and advances to bank and financial institutions -                              
Loans and advances to customers (76,987,862)                  190,287,347                 
Other assets (486,649)                      1,217,675                     
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions -                              -                              
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -                              -                              
Deposit from customers (33,190,110)                  (64,675,974)                  
Borrowings 112,744,767                 (139,257,802)                
Other liabilities 7,868,587                     (14,143,092)                  
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 10,700,339                   (20,292,319)                  
Income taxes paid (25,951)                        (571,296)                      
Net cash flow from operating activities 10,674,388                   (20,863,615)                  
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities -                              -                              
Receipts from sale of investment securities -                              -                              
Purchase of property and equipment (2,541,249)                    (117,881)                      
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment -                              -                              
Purchase of intangible assets (286,389)                      -                              
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets -                              -                              
Purchase of investment properties -                              -                              
Receipt from the sale of investment properties -                              -                              
Interest received -                              -                              
Dividend received -                              -                              
Others -                              -                              
Net cash used in investing activities (2,827,638)                    (117,881)                      
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities -                              -                              
Repayment of debt securities -                              -                              
Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities -                              -                              
Repayment of subordinated liability -                              -                              
Receipts from issue of shares -                              -                              
Dividends paid -                              -                              
Interest paid -                              -                              
Other receipt/payment (1,094,870)                    (12,971)                        
Net cash from financing activities (1,094,870)                    (12,971)                        
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,751,879                     (20,994,467)                  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 17,328,125                   38,322,592                   
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held -                              -                              
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 24,080,004                   17,328,125                   
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.              As per our report of even date

Date: 13 Ashwin, 2081
Place: Lahan - 8, Siraha

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended  31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Lahan-8, Siraha

Mr. Satya Narayan Jha                    Dr. Pramod Kumar Jha                         Mr. Sudhansu Sekhar Jha                     CA. Sijan Bohara        
Chairman                                             Director                                                       Director                                                Partner

                                                                                                                                                                               K.J. & Associates
                                                                                                                                                                         Chartered Accountants

Mrs. Heera Ghimire                         Mr. Binoda Nand Jha                            Mr. Dhirendra Lal Karn              Mr. Toyanath Pokhrel
Director                                            Independent Director                               Chief Executive Officer                      Chief Finance Officer                            
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Figures in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss (1,377,877)                      3,604,939                      
Appropriation
a. General Reserve -                                  (987,266)                        
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund -                                  -                                 
c. Capital redemption reserve -                                  -                                 
d. Corporate social responsibility fund -                                  (49,363)                          
e. Employees training fund 155,413                          -                                 
f. Customer Protection Fund -                                  (49,363)                          
g. Other
    i. Fair Value Reserves -                                  -                                 
    ii. Investment Adjustment Reserve -                                  -                                 
    iii. Other Adjustments 3,780,710                       (3,780,710)                     
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 2,558,245                       (1,261,764)                     
Regulatory Adjustments:
a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+) (9,495,495)                      1,045,126                      
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+) -                                  -                                 
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+) -                                  -                                 
d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal(+) -                                  -                                 
e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reversal(+) (1,202,431)                      -                                 
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+) -                                  -                                 
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+) -                                  -                                 
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+) -                                  -                                 
i. Other (+/-) (913,905)                         159,460                         
Net Profit for the year end 31st Ashadh 2080 available for distribution (9,053,586)                      (57,178)                          
Opening Retained Earning As on 1st Shrawan 13,518,125                     13,575,303                    
Adjustments(+/-)
Distribution:
Bonus Share issued -                                  -                                 
Cash Dividend Paid
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on year end                      4,464,539.39                   13,518,124.92 
Annualized Distributable Profit/Loss Per Share 12.88                              39.01                             

Date: 13 Ashwin, 2081
Place: Lahan - 8, Siraha

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Lahan-8, Siraha

Mr. Satya Narayan Jha                    Dr. Pramod Kumar Jha                         Mr. Sudhansu Sekhar Jha                      CA. Sijan Bohara        
Chairman                                             Director                                                  Director                                                    Partner

                                                                                                                                                                                            K.J. & Associates
                                                                                                                                                                                            Chartered Accountants

Mrs. Heera Ghimire                         Mr. Binoda Nand Jha                            Mr. Dhirendra Lal Karn                           Mr. Toyanath Pokhrel

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

As per NRB Regulation

        Director                                             Independent Director                                Chief Executive Officer                              Chief Finance Officer                            
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Note No. 4.1
Cash and Cash equivalents  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Cash in hand 58,180                                             44,785                     55,727 
Balance with B/FIs 24,021,824                                 17,283,340               38,266,865 
Money at call and short notice -                                                          -                              -   
Other -                                                          -                              -   
Total 24,080,004                                 17,328,125               38,322,592 

Note No. 4.2
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Statutory Balances with NRB -                                                          -                              -   
Statutory Balances with NRB BFIs 3,000,000                                    2,350,000                 3,250,000 
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement -                                                          -                              -   
Other depoist and receivable from NRB -                                                          -                              -   
Total 3,000,000                                    2,350,000                 3,250,000 

Note No. 4.3
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Placements with domestic B/FIs -                                                          -                              -   
Less: Allowances for Impairment -                                                          -                              -   
Total -                                                          -                              -   

Note No. 4.4
Derivative Financial Instruments  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Held for trading
Interest rate swap -                                                          -                              -   
Currency swap -                                                          -                              -   
Forward exchange contract -                                                          -                              -   
Others -                                                          -                              -   
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap -                                                          -                              -   
Currency swap -                                                          -                              -   
Forward exchange contract -                                                          -                              -   
Others -                                                          -                              -   
Total -                                                          -                              -   

Note No. 4.5
Other Trading Assets  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Treasury Bills -                                                          -                              -   
Government Bonds -                                                          -                              -   
NRB Bonds -                                                          -                              -   
Domestic Corporate Bonds -                                                          -                              -   
Equities -                                                          -                              -   
Other -                                                          -                              -   
Total -                                                          -                              -   
Pledged -                                                          -                              -   
Non-pledged -                                                          -                              -   

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha
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 Note No. 4.6
Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Loans to microfinance institutions -                                                       -                              -   
Loans to FIs -                                                       -                              -   
Loans to Cooperatives -                                                       -                              -   
Less:Allowance for impairment -                                                       -                              -   
Other -                                                       -                              -   
Less: Allowance for impairment -                                                       -                              -   
Total -                                                          -                              -   

Note 4.6.1.
Allowance for impairment  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Balance for 1st Shrawan -                                                       -                              -   
Impairment loss for the year -                                                       -                              -   
Charge for the year -                                                       -                              -   
Recoveries/reversal -                                                       -                              -   
Amount written off -                                                       -                              -   
Balance at Jestha end -                                                       -                              -   

Note No. 4.7
Loans and advances to customers  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Loans and advances measured at amortised cost 589,010,720                           512,022,858           702,310,205 
Less: Impairment allowances

Collective Allowances (3,978,221)                                  (3,026,342)                (2,271,417)
Individual Allowances (8,603,900)                                  (5,773,527)                (7,351,482)

Net amount 576,428,599                             503,222,990             692,687,306 
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL
Total 576,428,599                             503,222,990             692,687,306 

Note No. 4.7.1
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Product  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Product
Term Loans -                                                          -                              -   
Short term, term loan -                                                          -                              -   
Long term, Term loan -                                                          -                              -   
Hire purchase loan -                                                          -                              -   
Personal Residential Loans -                                                          -                              -   
Staff loans 4,657,200               1,984,590                     1,580,951                
Others 565,281,143           506,038,105                  695,070,161            
Sub Total 569,938,343                             508,022,695             696,651,112 
Interest receivable 19,072,377                                  4,000,163                 5,659,093 
Grand Total            589,010,720                   512,022,858             702,310,205 

Note No. 4.7.2
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Secured
Immovable assets                           -                                    -                              -   
Government Guarantee                           -                                    -                              -   
Collateral of Government securities                           -                                    -                              -   
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt                           -                                    -                              -   
Group Guarantee            584,353,520                   506,038,105             695,070,161 
Personal Guarantee                           -                                    -                              -   
Other collateral                4,657,200                      1,984,590                 1,580,951 
Subtotal            589,010,720                   508,022,695             696,651,112 
Unsecured
Grand Total            589,010,720                   508,022,695             696,651,112 
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Note No. 4.7.3
Allowances for Impairment  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Specific allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 5,773,527                                    7,351,482                   474,728 
Impairment loss for the year -                                                          -                              -   
Charge for the year 3,250,762                                       391,298                 6,876,754 
Recoveries/reversal during the year (420,389)                                     (1,969,253)                            -   
Write-offs -                                                          -                              -   
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency -                                                          -                              -   
Other Movement -                                                          -                              -   
Balance at Ashad end                8,603,900                      5,773,527                 7,351,482 
Collective allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 3,026,342                                    2,271,417                 1,914,310 
Impairment loss for the year -                                                        -                              -   
Charge/for the year 1,392,979                                    1,865,826                   440,705 
Recoveries/reversal during the year (441,100)                                     (1,110,901)                    (83,598)
Other movement -                                                          -                              -   
Balance at Ashad end. 3,978,221                                    3,026,342                 2,271,417 
Total Allowance for impairment 12,582,121                                  8,799,869                 9,622,899 

Note No. 4.8
Investment securities  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Investment securities measured at amortised cost -                                                          -                              -   
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI -                         -                               -                         
Total -                                                          -                              -   

Note No. 4.8.1
Investment securities measured at ammortized cost  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Debt securities -                                                          -                              -   
Government bonds -                                                          -                              -   
Government treasury bills -                                                          -                              -   
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds -                                                          -                              -   
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments -                                                          -                              -   
Other

Fixed Deposits -                                                          -                              -   
Less: specific allowances for impairment
Total -                                                          -                              -   

Note No. 4.8.2
Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Equity intrument
Quoted equity instrument                           -                                    -                              -   
Unquoted equiuty instrument                           -                                    -                              -   
Total -                                                          -                              -   

Note No. 4.9
Current tax assets  Figures in NPR 

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 1,891,592                                    4,036,780                 6,763,452 
Tax assets of prior periods -                                                          -                              -   
Total 1,891,592                                    4,036,780                 6,763,452 
Current tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 691,758                                       2,171,139                 3,297,969 
Tax Liabilities of prior periods -                                                          -                              -   
Total                   691,758                      2,171,139                 3,297,969 
Total                1,199,834                      1,865,640                 3,465,484 
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Note: 4.10
Investment Properties

Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 

31st Ashadh 
2080

Restated* As at 
1st Shrawan 

2079
Investment Properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 1 -                                                 -   -                      
Addition/Disposal during the year -                                                 -   -                      
Net changes in fair value during the year -                                                 -   -                      
Adjustment/Transfer -                                                 -   -                      
Net Amount -                                                 -   -                      
Investment Properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1 -                                                 -   -                      
Addition/Disposal during the year -                                                 -   -                      
Adjustment/Transfer -                                                 -   -                      
Accumulated depreciation -                                                 -   -                      
Accumulated impairment loss -                                                 -   -                      
Net Amount -                                                 -   -                      
Total -                        -                      -                      

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha

 

Note :  4.11
Property and Equipment Figures in NPR

Total Total Total
As at 31st Ashadh 

2081
As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Cost
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079       -             -             471,633          1,855,677             536,800          1,714,442                -           1,144,143         5,722,695 
Addition during the Year

Acquisition       -             -               25,050                      -                 59,831                      -                  -               33,000             117,881 
Capitalization       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                        -   

Disposal during the year       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                        -   
Adjustment/Revaluation -               -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                        -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080       -             -             496,683          1,855,677             596,631          1,714,442                -           1,177,143          5,840,576 
Addition during the Year                        -   

Acquisition       -             -                      -               240,669  `               71,003                -           4,531,010             4,842,682 
Capitalization       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                        -   

Disposal during the year -               -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                          -                        -   
Adjustment/Revaluation       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                          -                        -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2081       -             -             496,683          2,096,346             596,631          1,785,445                -           5,708,153           10,683,258 
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079       -             -             164,408             783,041             225,516             879,306                -             498,103         2,550,374 
Depreciation charge for the Year       -             -             123,158 281,159                        188,561               76,686                -             305,153             974,717 
Impairment for the year       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                        -   
Disposal       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                        -   
Adjustment       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                        -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080       -             -             287,566          1,064,200             414,077             955,992                -             803,256          3,525,091 
Depreciation charge for the Year             62,907             342,537               76,686             291,955                -           1,527,349             2,301,434 
Impairment for the year                    -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                          -   
Disposals                    -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                          -   
Adjustment                        -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2081       -             -             350,474          1,406,736             490,762          1,247,947                -           2,330,605             5,826,525 
Capital Work in Progress
Capital Work in Progress 2079.04.01       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                      -   
Capital Work in Progress 2080.03.31       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -   -                  
Capital Work in Progress 2081.03.31       -             -                      -                        -                        -                        -                  -                      -                          -                      -   
Net Book Value as on 1st Shrawan 2079       -             -             307,225          1,072,636             311,284             835,135                -             646,040         3,172,321 
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2080       -             -             209,117             791,477             182,554             758,450                -             373,887          2,315,485 
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2081       -             -             146,209             689,610             105,869             537,498                -           3,377,548             4,856,734 

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
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Note :  4.12
Goodwill and Intangible Assets Figures in NPR

Total Total Total

Purchased Developed As at 31st 
Ashadh 2081

As at 31st 
Ashadh 2080

As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079

Cost
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079 -               985,266                   -        -   985,266            
Addition during the Year                    -   
Acquisition                -                      -   

Capitalization                    -   
Disposal during the year                    -   

Adjustment/Revaluation                -                      -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080        985,266                   -        -                    -                      -               985,266 
Addition during the Year

Acquisition          -          452,000         452,000 
Capitalization                  -   
Disposal during the year                  -   

Adjustment/Revaluation                -                    -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2081          -       1,437,266                   -        -         1,437,266 

Ammortization and Impairment
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079        361,232 361,232            
Ammortization charge for the Year            54,549             54,549 
Imapirment for the year                    -   
Disposals                     -   
Adjustment                -                      -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080        415,780           415,780 
Ammortization charge for the Year        165,611         165,611 
Imapirment for the year                -                    -   
Disposals                 -                    -   
Adjustment                  -   
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2081          -          581,391                   -        -           581,391 
Capital Work in Progress          -                  -                     -        -                    -                      -                       -   
Net Book Value as on 1st Shrawan 2079          -          624,035                   -        -               624,035 
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2080          -          569,486                   -        -             569,486 
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2081          -          855,875                   -        -           855,875 

OtherGoodwill
Particulars

Software

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha
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Note: 4.13 Figures in NPR
Deferred Tax Current Year

Particulars  Deferred Tax 
Assets 

 Deferred Tax 
Liabilities 

 Net Deferred Tax 
(Assets) / Liabilities 

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to B/FIs -                         
Loans and Advances to customers -                         
Investment Properties -                         
Investment Securities -                 -                         
Property and equipment -                 768,772          768,772                  
Intangible Assets -                 80,483           80,483                    
Employees' defined benefit plan -                 -                 -                         
Lease liabilities 1,080,063       -                 (1,080,063)               
Provisions -                 -                 -                         
Other temporary differences 971,622          (971,622)                 

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 2,051,685       849,254          (1,202,431)               
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -                         
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -                         
Net Defered tax (asset)/liabilities as on year end of 2080-81 (1,202,431)               
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Recognized directly in equity -                         
Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2080 492,097                  
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (1,694,528)               

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss (1,694,528)               
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income -                         
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity -                         

Previous Year

Particulars Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax 
(Assets) / Liabilities

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to B/FIs -                         
Loans and Advances to customers -                         
Investment Properties -                         
Investment Securities -                 -                         
Property and equipment 28,145           (28,145)                   
Intangible Assets -                 61,780           61,780                    
Employees' defined benefit plan -               -                 -                         
Lease liabilities -                 -                         
Provisions -                         
Accrued Interest Receivable -                 1,200,049       1,200,049                
Other temporary differences 741,588          -                 (741,588)                 

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 769,733          1,261,829       492,097                  
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -                         
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -                         
Net Defered tax (asset)/liabilities as on year end of 2079-80 492,097                  
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Recognized directly in equity

Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2079 1,094,884                
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (602,787)                 
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss (602,787)                 
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income -                         
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity -                         

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷)*! @^

 

Note: 4.14
Other Assets Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

 Restated* As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079 

Assets held for sale -                         -                         -                         
Other Non-Banking Assets -                         -                         -                         
Bills Receivable -                         -                        -                        
Accounts receivable 473,815                  -                         124,392                  
Accrued income -                         -                         -                         
Prepayments and deposits 449,519                  483,136                  1,595,999                
Income tax deposit -                         -                         -                         
Deferred Employee Expenditure -                         -                         -                         
Expenses to be written off -                         325,745                  239,840                  
Other

Insurance Claim Receivable -                         -                         61,746                    
Stationery Stock 197,961                  217,324                  205,751                  
Staff Advances -                         -                         -                         
Fixed Deposits -                         -                         -                         
Other 391,945                  386                         16,539                    

Total 1,513,240                1,026,591                2,244,266                

Note:4.15
Due to Bank and financial institution Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Borrowing from BFIs -                         -                         -                         
Settlement and clearing accounts -                         -                         -                         
Other -                         -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.16
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Refinance from NRB -                         -                         -                         

 Standing liquidity facility -                         -                         -                         
 Lender of last resort facilty from NRB -                         -                         -                         
 Securities sold under repurchase agreement -                         -                         -                         
 Other payable to NRB -                         -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.17
Derivative financial instruments Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
 Held for trading 
 Interest rate swap  -                         -                         -                         
 Currency swap -                         -                         -                         
 Forward exchange contract -                         -                         -                         
 Others -                         -                         -                         
 Held for risk management 
 Interest rate swap  -                         -                         -                         
 Currency swap -                         -                         -                         
 Forward exchange contract -                         -                         -                         
 Others -                         -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha
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Note:4.18
Deposits from Customers Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Institutions Customers:
Term deposits -                         -                         -                         
Call Deposits -                         -                         -                         
Other -                         -                         -                         
Sub total: -                         -                         -                         
Individual Customers:
Compulsory Saving Deposits 31,225,060              44,884,923              34,080,521              
Voluntary Saving Deposits 60,919,699              80,449,946              155,930,322            
Other -                         -                         -                         

 Sub total: 92,144,759              125,334,869            190,010,843            
Total 92,144,759              125,334,869            190,010,843            

Note:4.19
Borrowing Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
 Domestic Borrowing 
 Nepal Government -                         -                         -                         
 Other licensed institution 445,740,919            332,996,152            472,253,954            
 Other  -                         -                         -                         
Sub total 445,740,919            332,996,152            472,253,954            
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions -                         -                         -                         
Multilateral Development Bank -                         -                         -                         
Other institutions -                         -                         -                         
Sub total -                         -                         -                         
Total 445,740,919            332,996,152            472,253,954            

Note:4.20
Provisions Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Provisions for redundancy -                         -                         -                         
Provision for restructuring -                         -                         -                         
Pending legal issues and tax litigation -                         -                         -                         
Onerous contract -                         -                         -                         

 Other -                         -                         -                         
 Total -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.20.1
Movement in provision Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
 Balance at shrawan 1st -                         -                         -                         
 Provisions made during the year -                         -                         -                         
 Provisions used during the year -                         -                         -                         
 Provisions reversed during the year -                         -                         -                         
Unwind of discount -                         -                         -                         
Balance at Ashadh End -                         -                         -                         
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 Note:4.21
 Other liabilities Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
 Liability for employees defined benefit obligations -                         -                         -                         
Liability for long-service leave 3,238,740                2,471,961                1,924,898                
Staff Welfare Fund 237,245                  193,685                  270,559                  

 Short-term employee benefits 1,915,964                1,015,300                343,133                  
Bills payable 3,500                      3,500                      3,500                      
Creditors and Accruals 100,000                  -                         75,339                    

 Interest payable on deposit -                         -                         -                         
 Interest payable on borrowing 2,715,440                -                         -                         
 Liabilities on deferred grant income -                         -                         -                         
Unpaid Dividend -                         -                         -                         

 Liabilities under finance lease -                         -                         -                         
Employee bonus payable -                         363,466                  1,072,562                
Other -                         -                         -                         

Audit Fee 111,500                  111,500                  111,500                  
Liabilities for Insurance Claim 828,262                  1,556,667                8,797,225                
Insurance Premium 1,472,712                105,954                  7,651,775                
Lease Liabilities 3,600,211                -                         -                         
Liabilities for Debt Securitization Fund -                         1,019,058                1,440,768                
Liabilities for Insurance Claim of Debt & Savings Securitization Fund -                         828,262                  -                         
TDS Liabilities 162,742                  157,129                  212,395                  
Other 1,344,034                35,280                    101,200                  

Total 15,730,350              7,861,763                22,004,854              

Note:4.21.1
 Defined benefit obligaation Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Present value of funded obligations -                         -                         -                         
Total present value of obligations -                         -                         -                         
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of net obligations -                         -                         -                         
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligation -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.21.2
 Plan Assets Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Equity securities -                         -                         -                         
Government bonds -                         -                         -                         
Bank deposit -                         -                         -                         
Other -                         -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.21.3
 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Defined benefit obligation at Shrawan 1st                            -   -                         -                         
Actuarial losses                            -   -                         -                         
Benefit paid by the plan                            -   -                         -                         
Current service cost and interest                            -   -                         -                         
Defined benefit obligation at Jestha end -                         -                         -                         



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷)*! @(

 Note:4.21.4
 Movement in the fair value of plan assets Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1st -                         -                         -                         
Contributions paid into the plan -                         -                         -                         
Benefit paid during the year -                         -                         -                         
Actuarial (losses) gains -                         -                         -                         
Expected return on plan assets -                         -                         -                         
Fair value of plan assets at Jestha end -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.21.5
 Amount recognised in profit or loss Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Current service cost                            -   -                         -                         
Interest on obligation                            -   -                         -                         
Expected return on plan assets                            -   -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.21.6
 Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 

Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Acturial (gain)/loss                            -   -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.21.7
 Actuarial assumptions 

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Discount rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary increase 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Withdrawal rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Note:4.22
Debt securities issued Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Debt securities issued designated at fair value through profit or loss -                         -                         -                         
Debt securities issued at amortised cost -                         -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         

Note:4.23
Subordinated liabilities Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Redeemable preference shares -                         -                         -                         
Irredemable cummulative preference shares(liabilities component) -                         -                         -                         
Other -                         -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         -                         
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Note:4.24
Share capital Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 

31st Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Ordinary shares (including Calls in Advance) 34,650,000               34,650,000            34,650,000              
Convetible preference share(Equity component) -                          -                       -                         
Irredemable preference share(Equity component) -                          -                       -                         
Perpetual debt(Equity component only) -                          -                       -                         
Total 34,650,000               34,650,000            34,650,000              

Note:4.24.1
Ordinary shares Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 

31st Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Authorized capital:
 Ordinary share of Rs.100 each 60,000,000               60,000,000            60,000,000              
Issued capital:
 Ordinary share of Rs.100 each 20,000,000               20,000,000            20,000,000              
Subscribed and paid of capital:
 Ordinary share of Rs.100 each 12,000,000               12,000,000            12,000,000              
Calls in Advance 22,650,000               22,650,000            22,650,000              
Total 34,650,000.00          34,650,000.00       34,650,000.00         

Note:4.24.2
Ordinary share ownership Figures in NPR

Percent Amount Percent  Amount Percent  Amount 
Domestic ownership(Promoter)

Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions
Other 100% 12,000,000            100% 12,000,000   100% 12,000,000        

Domestic ownership(public)
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institution
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions
Other

Foreign ownership Promoter
Foreign ownership public
Total 100.00% 12,000,000.00       100.00% 12,000,000   100.00% 12,000,000        

Note:4.25
Reserves Figures in NPR

Particulars
As at 

31st Ashadh 2081
Restated* As at 

31st Ashadh 2080
Restated* As at 1st 

Shrawan 2079
Statutory General Reserve 6,097,223                6,097,223              5,109,956               
Capital  reserve -                          -                       -                         
Exchange equalization reserve -                          -                       -                         
Investment adjustment reserve -                          -                       -                         
Corporate social responsibility reserve 64,865                     172,555                217,602                  
Client protection Fund 1,026,033                1,099,309              1,062,916               
Capital redemption reserve -                          -                       -                         
Regulatory reserve 13,218,029               2,520,103              3,565,228               
Assets revaluation reserve -                          -                      -                        
Fair value reserve -                          -                       -                         
Dividend equalization reserve -                          -                       -                         
Actuarial reserve -                          -                       -                         
Special reserve -                          -                       -                         
Debenture redemption reserve -                          -                       -                         
Other reserve -                          3,936,122              220,463                  
Total 20,406,149               13,825,311            10,176,165              

Restated* As at 1st Shrawan 2079

Particulars

As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 Restated* As at 31st Ashadh 2080

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha
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Note: 4.26
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment Figures in NPR

Particulars
 As at 

31st Ashadh 2081 
 Restated* As at 

31st Ashadh 2080 
 Restated* As at 

1st Shrawan 2079 

Contingent Liabilities -                         -                      -                     
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities -                         -                      -                     
Capital commitment -                         -                      -                     
Lease commitment -                         -                      -                     
Litigation -                         -                      -                     
others -                         -                      -                     
Total -                         -                      -                      

Note: 4.26.1
Capital commitments Figures in NPR

Particulars
 As at 

31st Ashadh 2081 
 Restated* As at 

31st Ashadh 2080 
 Restated* As at 

1st Shrawan 2079 

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for                            -                          -   -                     
Approved but not contracted for                            -                          -   -                     
Sub Total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for                            -                          -   -                     
Approved but not contracted for                            -                          -   -                     
Sub Total                            -                          -                          -   
Total -                         -                      -                      

Note No. 4.26.2
Lease Commitments Figures in NPR

Particulars
 As at 

31st Ashadh 2081 
 Restated* As at 

31st Ashadh 2080 
 Restated* As at 

1st Shrawan 2079 

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable operating 
lease, where the bank is lessee -                         -                      -                     
Not later than 1 year -                         -                      -                     
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years -                         -                      -                     
Later than 5 years -                         -                      -                     
Sub Total -                         -                      -                      
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable operating 
lease, where the bank is lessee -                         -                      -                     
Not later than 1 year -                         -                      -                     
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years -                         -                      -                     
Later than 5 years -                         -                      -                     
Sub Total -                         -                      -                      

Grand Total -                         -                      -                      

Note No. 4.26.3
Litigation
The microfinance does not have any litigations currently.

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
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Note: 4.27
Interest income Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Cash and cash equivalents 551,590                168,559                
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank -                       -                       
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions -                       -                      
Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions -                       -                       
Loans and advances to customers 78,826,364            84,955,088            
Investment securities -                       -                       
Loans and advances to staff 392,768                -                       
Other. -                       -                       
Total interest income 79,770,723            85,123,647            

Note: 4.28
Interest expense Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions -                       -                      
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -                       -                       
Deposits from customers 7,828,745              7,593,278              
Borrowing 50,414,579            51,454,975            
Debt securities issued -                       -                       
Subordinated liabilities -                       -                       
Other -                       -                       
Total interest expense 58,243,324            59,048,253            

Note: 4.29
Fees and Commission Income Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Loan Administration fees -                       -                       
Service fees 3,420,865              3,157,796              
Commitment fees -                       -                       
Card Issuance fees -                       -                       
Prepayment and swap fees -                       -                       
Remittance fees -                       -                       
Brokerage fees -                       -                       
Other Fees and Commission Income 5,525,436              7,003,092              
Total Fees and Commission Income 8,946,301              10,160,888            

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
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 Note: 4.30
Fees and commission expense Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Service Fees on Borrowings 1,054,014                            1,956,557 
ATM management fees -                       -                       
VISA/Master card fees -                       -                       
Guarantee commission -                       -                       
Brokerage -                       -                       
DD/TT/Swift fees -                       -                       
Remittance fees and commission -                       -                       
Other Fees and Commission Expense -                       -                       
Total Fees and Commission Expense 1,054,014              1,956,557              

Note: 4.31
Net trading income Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Changes in fair value of trading assets -                       -                       
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets -                       -                       
Interest income on trading assets -                       -                       
Dividend income on trading assets -                       -                       
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction -                       -                       
Other -                       -                       
Total Net trading income -                       -                       

Note: 4.32
Other operating income Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Foreign Exchange Revaulation Gain -                       -                       
Gain/Loss on sale of investment securities -                       -                       
Fair value gain/loss on investment property -                       -                       
Dividend on equity instruments -                       -                       
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment -                       -                       
Gain/loss on sale of investment property -                       -                       
Operating lease income -                       -                       
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver -                       -                       
Other -                       -                       
Total other operating income -                       -                       
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 Note: 4.33
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs -                       -                       
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 3,782,252              (823,030)               
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment -                       -                       
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and financial 
institutions -                       -                       
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment -                       -                       
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets -                       -                       
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties -                       -                       
Total impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses 3,782,252              (823,030)               

Note: 4.34
Personnel Expense Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Salary 14,992,750            13,661,226            
Allowances 1,276,073              2,037,078              
Gratuity & Provident Fund Expenses 1,329,675              1,244,959              
Uniform -                       294,500                
Training & Development Expense 549,136                562,643                
Leave encashment 1,432,653              1,248,048              
Medical -                       75,000                  
Insurance 158,284                92,863                  
Security Guard Expenses & Daily Wages -                       1,149,297              
Cash-settled share-based payments -                       -                       
Pension Expense -                       -                       
Finance expenses under NFRS -                       -                       
Other Expenses Related to Staff 646,403                140,490                
Sub-Total 20,384,974            20,506,104            
Employees Bonus -                       363,466                
Total personnel expenses 20,384,974            20,869,570            

Note: 4.35
Other operating expense Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Directors' fee 218,500                213,500                
Directors' expense 196,820                290,944                
Auditors' remuneration 113,000                113,000                
Other audit related expense 22,600                  7,700                    
Professional and legal expense 613,235                357,307                
Office administration expense 3,206,850              4,665,426              
Operating lease expense 255,677                2,382,753              
Operating expense of investment properties -                       -                       
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense -                       -                       
Client Protection expense -                       -                       
Onerous lease provision -                       -                       
Other

Finance Cost on Amortization 538,924                -                       
Other. 457                       -                       

Total other operating expense 5,166,062              8,030,629              
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 Note No 4.35.1
Office Administration Expenses Figures in NPR

Particulars

 As at 
31st Ashadh 

2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 

2080 
Water and electricity 228,109                169,354                
Repair and maintenance 

 (a) Building -                       -                       
 (b) Vehicle 24,800                  25,600                  
 (c) Computer and accessories 90,400                  107,300                
 (d) Office equipment and furniture -                       -                       
 (e) Other 17,360                  7,845                    

Insurance 
 (a) Vault Insurance -                       46,662                  
 (a) Asset Insurance 53,070                  10,659                  
 (a) Vehicle Insurance 7,784                    16,673                  

Postage, telex, telephone, fax 176,626                226,920                
Printing and stationery 162,227                261,150                
News paper, books and journals -                       -                       
Advertisement 65,510                  51,055                  
Donation -                       -                       
Security expense -                       -                       
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 1,119,886              2,180,816              
Travel allowance and expense -                       188,470                
CEO Travel Allowance and expense 273,627                360,660                
Guest Entertainment Expenses 66,470                  13,187                  
Annual/special general meeting expense 37,435                  49,355                  
Management committee expenses

 (a) Meeting Allowance -                       -                      
 (b) Other Expenses -                       -                      

 Other 
Website -                       
Closing Expenses -                       16,400                
Software 404,394                -                       
Bank Charge 12,188                  16,769                  
Registration and Renewal Expenses 175,886                -                       
Fuel Expenses 131,446                680,214                
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses -                       94,410                  
Others. 159,633                141,928                

Total 3,206,850              4,665,426              

Note: 4.36
Depreciation & Amortisation Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Depreciation on Property and Equipment 2,301,434              974,717                
Depreciation on investment property -                       -                       
Amortisation of intangible assets 165,611                54,549                  
Total depreciation and amortisation 2,467,044              1,029,266              
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 Note: 4.37
Non operating income Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Recovery of loan written off -                       -                       
other income

Bargain Purchased Gain -                       -                       
Reversal of Lease Liabilities -                       -                       
other income -                       -                       

Total non operating income -                       -                       

Note: 4.38
Non Operating Expense Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Loan Written Off -                      -                       
Redundancy provision -                       -                       
Expenses of restructuring -                       -                       
Other expense -                       -                       
Total non operating Expenses -                       -                       

Note: 4.39
Income tax expense Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Current tax expense 691,758                2,171,139              
Current year 691,758                2,171,139              
Adjustment for prior years -                       -                       
Deferred tax expense (1,694,528)             (602,787)               
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,694,528)             (602,787)               
Changes in tax rate -                       -                       
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses -                       -                       
Total income tax expense (1,002,770)             1,568,352              

4.39.1
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit Figures in NPR

Particulars  As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

 Restated* As at 
31st Ashadh 2080 

Profit before tax (2,380,647)             5,173,291              
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% (714,194)               1,551,987              
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 205,904                55,569                  
Less: Tax effect on exempt income -                       -                       
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 1,200,049              563,583                
Total income tax expense 691,758                2,171,139              
Effective tax rate -29.06% 41.97%
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5 Disclosure and Additional Information

S.N.
1
2
3
4 Mr. Bhagvani Sah Member-Secretary

ii. Risk Governance
Laghubitta has prepared and implemented various policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the
Laghubitta and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well
defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. Through its Risk Management Policy, the Laghubitta seeks to efficiently
manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Laghubitta's financial activities as well as operational,
regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking. The Laghubitta's risk governance
structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the Laghubitta risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the
appropriate functional, senior management and committees. The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with NRB directives, and has effectively implemented the same.
iii. Internal Control
The Board is responsible for ensuring the Laghubitta has appropriate internal control framework in place that supports the achievement of
the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Laghubitta shall be looked upon with a view to establish a proper control
mechanism is in place during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks
which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to
external events. 

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with NRB 
directives, and has effectively implemented the same. The effectiveness of the Laghubitta's internal control system and effective 
implementation of policies is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees, Management and Internal Audit Department. Internal Audit 
Reports are periodically forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and the committee issues appropriate corrective action in 
accordance with the issue involved to the respective department or branches.

5.1.1. Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of borrower to meet his contractual
obligations to pay the Laghubitta in accordance with agreed terms. As credit (financing) is the significant part of Laghubitta activities, the
policy, procedure and framework related to credit activities and credit risk management formulated by the Laghubitta has been
implemented effectively to mitigate/ minimize the credit risk of the Laghubitta. 

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors hence overall strategy as well as significant policies
has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior Management is responsible for implementing the Laghubitta's credit risk
management strategies and policies and ensuring that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of
credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.

Mrs. Hira Ghimire Cordinator
Mr. Sudhansu Sekhar Jha Member
Mr. Santosh Kumar Sah Member

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Name Position

5.1. Risk Management
Risk Management structure of the Laghubitta has set clear separation between business function and risk management function.
Accordingly, the Laghubitta has set up a Risk Management Department (IRMD). The RMD oversees global, macro, micro and
departmental level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well ason periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Senior
Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk taking is an inherent part of financial institutions providing microfinance services, as it provides financial services to low income
groups and individuals. Thus, management of risk plays a crucial role in smooth running of any microfinance and failure in doing so can
have devastating consequences.

In order to manage the risks that come with running a business, the Laghubitta has a separate Recovery & Risk Management
Department. It oversees risks that arise from everyday operations as well as looks at global and domestic outlook and its potential
implications on microfinance. The findings of this analysis are then presented to Senior Management, the Risk Management Committee,
and the Board for discussion. If necessary, instructions are issued based on these findings.

i. Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) is an independent committee headed by a non-executive Director, responsible for overall risk
management in the Laghubitta and to oversight the implementation of risk management framework in the Laghubitta. RMC assists the
Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regards to risk appetite that the Laghubitta is able and willing to assume in
its exposures and business activities, risk management, compliance framework and governance structure that supports it. It periodically
reviews the risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. It also reviews whether the internal control
and risk management system is adequate or not to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The committee is to review the
overall risk management structure and monitor the effectiveness of the risk management system. Currently, the Risk Management
Committee comprises of following Members:
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5.1.5. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will increase the cost of funds. To limit this risk, Laghubitta has
arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base and has implemented a policy of managing assets with
interest rates in mind, monitoring interest rates on a regular basis, and making repayment accordingly.

5.1.6. Strategic Risk
Strategic Risk is the risk of potential failures in strategic planning, which may lead to an organization not achieving its core objectives. It
is the risk arising from adverse business decisions or the failure to implement appropriate business decisions in a manner that is
consistent with the organization's strategic goals. Strategic Risk Management requires assessing, managing and measuring the risk
associated with business strategy. It involves evaluating possible events and scenarios that may have an impact on our strategy and how
they might affect the value of the Laghubitta taking into account the overall economic and social environment of the country while setting
tolerable levels of risk.

5.1.7. Compliance Risk
Compliance risk is an organization's potential exposure to legal penalties, financial forfeiture and material loss, resulting from its failure to
act in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, internal policies or prescribed best practices. Laghubitta takes the responsibility
of following best practices and industry standards very seriously. The respective departments and units of Laghubitta are responsible for
ensuring that compliance with related and applicable laws and regulations and finally Internal Audit Department of the Laghubitta
reporting on compliance risks in matters relating to the Laghubitta.

The Laghubitta is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical business practices and therefore to
averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events and is in a sound position to deal effectively with those events that do occur.
The adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures rolled out by Laghubitta and their effective implementation is closely
monitored by the department to ensure that they have continuing relevance in line with regulatory requirement and adjusts to dynamic
risk environment of the industry. 

5.1.2. Market Risk
Market risk can be defined as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the microfinance caused due to adverse changes
in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity) and volatilities of those prices. The Laghubitta has an Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) which meets periodically to discuss product pricing for deposits and advances and maturity profiles of
assets and liabilities, articulating interest rate, funding policy and balance sheet management. After understanding the market conditions
and demands; the Board and the management bring programs to suit the potentials and conditions of the market, and reduce the risk by
providing appropriate responsibilities to the employees from the top to the bottom based on their capabilities. For this, the internal control
system has been strengthened. 

5.1.3. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Laghubitta will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Laghubitta might be unable to meet its
payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances. Such scenarios could occur if the Laghubitta is unable to obtain funding for liquid asset positions on acceptable terms.
Laghubitta is unable to invest in accordance with customer demand and is also unable to repay savings and other legal obligations on
time due to a lack of liquidity. To limit this risk, Laghubitta has arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base 
and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and various liquidity ratios periodically. 

5.1.4. Operational risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the Laghubitta. Operational Risk is pervasive across all the functions of the
Laghubitta and is influenced by all resources, including human resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed by the Laghubitta to
carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be caused by both internal and external sources such as fraud, business interruptions,
system failures, damage to physical infrastructure, failure in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers,
inadequacy in procedures or flawed process designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any business function or the
business supporting functions.
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5.2. Capital management

b. Quantitative Disclosures

A. Core Capital (Rs. In '000)

Current Previous* Restated
1 Paid up Capital (ordinary shares) 12,000                        12,000                    
2 Proposed bonus share -                             -                         
3 Share premium -                             -                         
4 Irredeemable preferential share -                             -                         
5 General Reserve Fund 6,097.22                     6,097.22                 
6 Accumulated profit/(loss) 4,464.54                     13,518.12                
7 Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet -                             -                         
8 Capital Redemption Reserve Fund -                             -                         
9 Capital Adjustment Fund -                             -                         

10 Calls in advance 22,650                        22,650                    
11 Other Free Reserves -                             -                         

a Goodwill -                             -                         
b Deferred tax assets 1,202.43                     -                         
b Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits -                             -                         
c Investment to the company having financial interests -                             -                         
d Fictitious Asset -                             -                         
e Investment on land and building for self use not complying the Directives of NRB -                             -                         
f Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits -                             -                         
g Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time -                             -                         
h Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws -                             -                         

44,009.33                    54,265.35                
B.  Supplementary capital

Current Previous* Restated
1 General Loan Loss Provision 3,978.22                     1,746.43                 
2 Additional loan loss provision 2,347.49                     4,008.79                 
3 Hybrid capital instruments -                             -                         
4 Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt -                             -                         
5 Exchange Equalization Fund -                             -                         
6 Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added automatically) -                             -                         
7 Investment adjustment Fund -                             -                         

                     6,325.71                  5,755.22 

C.  Total Capital Fund (A+B) 50,335.04                    60,020.56                

D.  Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:
1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 49,080.58                    42,408.27                
2 Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 24,540.29                    21,204.13                
3 Capital Fund maintained ( in %) 8.20% 11.32%
4 Core Capital maintained (in %) 7.17% 10.24%

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

The Laghubitta's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is adequately capitalized to
withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licensed institution providing financial services therefore it must
comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

a. Qualitative disclosures
Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to manage all material risk
inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for maintaining capital levels. This
includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing
and maintaining adequate capital. The Microfinance has BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance.

Total Supplementary Capital (B)

Total Core Capital (A)

Description S.No.

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy Ratio
At the month end of Ashadh, 2081

Period

Deductions:

S.No. Description Period
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A. On-Balance-sheet Items (Rs. in '000)

 Amount  RWA  Amount  RWA 
1 Cash Balance 0 58.18             -                 44.79              -                 
2 Gold (Tradable) 0 -                -                 -                  -                 
3 NRB Balance 0 3,000.00        -                 2,350.00         -                 
4 Investment to Govt. Bond 0 -                -                 -                  -                 
5 Investment to NRB Bond 0 -                -                 -                  -                 
6 Loan against Own FD 0 -                -                 -                  -                 
7 Loan against Govt. Bond 0 -                -                 -                  -                 
8 Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0 -                -                 -                  -                 
9 Investment to Youth and Small Entrepreneurs Self-employment Fund 0 -                -                 -                  -                 
10 Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions 20 24,021.82      4,804.36        17,283.34       3,456.67        
11 Loan against other banks' and financial institutions' FD 20 -                -                 -                  -                 
12 Foreign bank balance 20 -                -                 -                  -                 
13 Money at call 20 -                -                 -                  -                 
14 Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 20 -                -                 -                  -                 
15 Investment to internationally rated Banks 20 -                -                 -                  -                 
16 Inter-bank lending 20 -                -                 -                  -                 
17 Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 -                -                 -                  -                 
18 Other investments 100 -                -                 -                  -                 
19 Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100 569,938.34    569,938.34    508,022.70     508,022.70    
20 Fixed assets 100 5,712.61        5,712.61        2,884.97         2,884.97        
21 Net interest receivables (Total IR - 8 - Interest supsense) 100 19,072.38      19,072.38      4,000.16         4,000.16        
22 Net Non-Banking Asset 100 -                -                 -                  -                 
23 Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100 1,513.24        1,513.24        1,026.59         1,026.59        
24 Real estate/residential housing loans exceeding the limits 150 -                -                 -                  -                 

Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 623,316.57    601,040.93    535,612.55     519,391.09    

B. Off-Balance-sheet Items
(%)

 Amount  RWA  Amount  RWA 
1 Bills collection 0 -                 -                 
2 Forward foreign exchange contract 10 -                 -                 
3 L/C with maturity less than six months (Outstanding value) 20 -                 -                 
4 Guarantee against International rated bank's counter guarantee 20 -                 -                 
5 L/C with maturity more than six months (Outstanding value) 50 -                 -                 
6 Bid bond, performance bond and underwriting 50 -                 -                 
7 Loan sale with repurchase agreement 50 -                 -                 
8 Advance payment guarantee 100 -                 -                 
9 Financial and other guarantee 100 -                 -                 
10 Irrevocable loan commitment 100 -                 -                 
11 Possible liabilities for income tax 100 -                 -                 
12 All types of possible liabilities including acceptance 100 -                 -                 
13 Rediscounted bills 100 -                 -                 
14 Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100 -                 -                 
15 Unpaid guarantee claims 200 -                 -                 
16 Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2% of Total Assets) 100 12,466.33      12,466.33      10,712.25       10,712.25      

Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) 12,466.33      12,466.33      10,712.25       10,712.25      

Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B) 635,782.90    613,507.27    546,324.80     530,103.34    

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

S.No. Description  Current period Previous period

Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
At the month end of  Ashadh, 2081

S.No. Description Weight 
(%)

 Current period Previous period
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Operating Segment Information
5.4.1.General information

5.4.2 Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Madhesh Province
88,717,024               

-                          
88,717,024               
79,770,723               
58,243,324               
21,527,399               

-                          
21,527,399               

-                          
613,136,717             
553,616,028             

5.4.3 Measurement of Operating Segment Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities

5.4.4 Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Revenues, Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities

(a) Revenue
88,717,024               

-                          
-                          

88,717,024               

(b) Profit or loss
21,527,399               

-                          
-                          
-                          

21,527,399               

(c) Assets
613,136,717             

-                          
-                          

613,136,717             

d) Liabilities
553,616,028             
357,777,213             

-                          
553,616,028             

5.4.5 Information about products and Services
Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above

87,772,665               
944,359                   

88,717,024               

5.4.6 Information about Geographical Areas
Revenues from following Geographical Areas

88,717,024               
88,717,024               

-                          
88,717,024               

100% of the company’s non-current assets are located within Madhesh Province.

5.4.7 Information about major customers

Lahan-8, Siraha

Particulars
Revenues from external customers

Total revenues for reportable segments 
Other revenues
Elimination of intersegment revenues
Entity’s revenues

Inter Segment Expenses/revenues
Net Revenue
Interest revenue
Interest expenses
Net Interest expenses/revenue
Depreciation and amortization
Segment profit/(loss)
Other material non-cash items:
Impairment of assets
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total profit or loss for reportable segments
Other profit or loss
Elimination of intersegment profits
Unallocated amounts:
Profit Before Income Tax

Total assets for reportable segments
Other assets
Unallocated amounts
Entity’s assets

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Other liabilities

The company serves a diverse group of individuals within underprivileged communities. The revenue from one single external customer 
doesn’t exceed 10 percent of the entity's revenue for the Laghubitta.

100% of the company’s revenue is derived from operations within Madhesh Province.

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Madhesh Province

Total
(b) Foreign

The financial statements of Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) which include NFRS 8 – Operating Segments. 

The company operates exclusively within Madhesh Province, providing loans to economically and socially underprivileged communities.
Considering the nature of operations, products, and regulatory environment, the company has been identified as a single
operating segment.

Revenues from external customers comprise of gross interest revenue, gross fee and commission revenue, net trading revenue and 
other operating incomes.

Entity’s liabilities 

Revenue from each type of product and services
(a) Microfinance related services
(b) others
Total

(a) Domestic



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷)*! $@

 

5.3  Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Particulars  Amortized Cost
(NPR.)  FVTPL  FVTOCI  Total (NPR.) 

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent 24,080,004           -      -        24,080,004        
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3,000,000             -      -        3,000,000          
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions -                      -      -        -                   
Derivative Financial Instruments -                      -      -        -                   
Other Trading Assets -                      -      -        -                   
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives -                      -      -        -                   
Loan and Advances to Customers 576,428,599         -      -        576,428,599      
Investment Securities -                      -      -        -                   
Other Assets 1,513,240             -      -        1,513,240          

Total Financial Assets 605,021,843         -      -        605,021,843      
Financial Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions -                      -      -        -                   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -                      -      -        -                   
Derivative Financial Instrument -                      -      -        -                   
Deposits from Customers 92,144,759           -      -        92,144,759        
Borrowing 445,740,919         -      -        445,740,919      
Other Liabilities 15,730,350           -      -        15,730,350        
Debt Securities Issued -                      -      -        -                   
Total Financial Liabilities 553,616,028         -      -        553,616,028      

Particulars  Amortized Cost
(NPR.)  FVTPL  FVTOCI  Total (NPR.) 

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent 17,328,125           -      -        17,328,125        
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 2,350,000             -      -        2,350,000          
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions -                      -      -        -                   
Derivative Financial Instruments -                      -      -        -                   
Other Trading Assets -                      -      -        -                   
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives -                      -      -        -                   
Loan and Advances to Customers 576,428,599         -      -        576,428,599      
Investment Securities -                      -      -        -                   
Other Assets 1,513,240             -      -        1,513,240          

Total Financial Assets 597,619,964         -      -        597,619,964      
Financial Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions -                      -      -        -                   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -                      -      -        -                   
Derivative Financial Instrument -                      -      -        -                   
Deposits from Customers 92,144,759           -      -        92,144,759        
Borrowing 445,740,919         -      -        445,740,919      
Other Liabilities 15,730,350           -      -        15,730,350        
Debt Securities Issued -                      -      -        -                   
Total Financial Liabilities 553,616,028         -      -        553,616,028      

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value 
through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081

As on 31st Ashadh, 2080

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha
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S.N.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

S.N.
1
2
3
4
7

Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments and Facilities
S.N.

1
2
3

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha

5.8. Merger and Acquisition
The Microfinance has not acquired any other institutions till date.

5.9. Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities
The Microfinance doesn’t have any subsidiaries & associates. So, additional disclosure is not required.

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Short Term Employee Benefits               900,000 

Karmachari Sewa Subidha Committee Meeting 3                     7,500 

5.10. Events after reporting date
No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period" are 
observed after the reporting period.

Retirement Benefits               108,000 
Others               342,321 

           1,350,321 Total

Risk Management Committee Meeting 4                   20,000 
Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee Meeting 4                   10,000 

Board Meeting 12                 156,000 
Audit Committee Meeting 5                   25,000 

5.7.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

Particulars No of Meetings Meeting Fees

Mr. Dhirendra Lal Karn Company Secretary
Mr. Ganesh Gurung Head - Internal Audit Department

Mr. Bhagvani Sah Head- Loan Recovery Department
Mr. Santosh Kumar Sah Head - Central Operation Department

Mr. Santosh Kumar Sah Head - Credit Approval Department

Mr. Santosh Kumar Sah Chief Business Officer
Mr. Toyanath Pokhrel Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Heera Ghimire Director
Mr. Binoda Nand Jha Independent Director
Mr. Dhirendra Lal Karn Chief Executive Officer

5.5. Share options and share based payment
The Microfinance do not have a policy for share options to its employees. Similarly, during the year the 
laghubitta has not made any payments or settlements by issuing new shares.

5.6. Contingent liabilities and commitment
Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.26.

5.7 Related Party Disclosures
5.7.1. List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
The laghubitta identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

Name Relationship

Mr. Satya Narayan Jha Charmain
Dr. Pramod Kumar Jha Director
Mr. Sudhansu Sekhar Jha Director
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5.11 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs

1. Reconciliation of Equity

 Particulars Explanatory 
note*

Date of 
Transition

End of last period 
presented under previous 

GAAP
 Total equity under Previous GAAP 54,150,359                                 59,073,721 
Adjustments for NFRS 
Impairment on loan and advances -                    -                                    
Fair value and employees benefit accounting of staff loan -                    -                                    
Lease accounting -                    -                                    
Measurement of  investment securities at fair value -                    -                                    
Recognition of property and equipment as per NFRS 2 413,920             194,237                             
Recognition of investment property -                    -                                    
Amortisation of debt securities issued -                    -                                    
Deferred tax 3 (1,821,904)         (1,274,685)                         
Defined benefit obligation of employees -                    -                                    
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain -                    -                                    
Interest Income 1 5,659,093          4,000,163                          
Other -                   -                                  
Income Tax Provision -                   -                                  
Staff Bonus Payables -                   -                                  
Liability for long-service leave -                                                         -   
 Total Adjustments to Equity 4,251,109          2,919,715                          
Total equity under under NFRSs 58,401,468         61,993,436                        

2. Reconciliation of profit or loss
Particulars Explanatory 

note*
End of last period 

presented under previous 
GAAP

Profit or loss under GAAP                           4,936,332 
 Adjustments for NFRS 
Interest income 1                          (1,658,930)
Impairment of loans and advances                                      -   
Employees benefit amortization under staff loan                                      -   
Defined benefit obligation of employee                                      -   
Operating lease expense                                      -   
Amortisation expense of debt securities                                      -   
Other operating income                                      -   
Interest expense                                      -   
Depreciation and Amortisation 2                             (219,682)
Other                                      -   
Staff Bonus                                      -   
Finance Cost on Lease Liabilities                                      -   
Income Tax Expenses 3                              547,219 
Provision on Investment Securities                                      -   
Total Adjustments to profit or loss (1,331,393)                         
Profit or loss under NFRSs 3,604,939                          
Other comprehensive income -                                    
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs 3,604,939                          

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081
Lahan-8, Siraha
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3.Effect of NFRSs Adoption for the Statement of Financial Position

Particulars

Explanatory 
Notes*

As per Old 
GAAP As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079

Adjustments 
for NFRS

Restated* As 
at 1st 

Shrawan 2079

As per Old 
GAAP As at 31 
Ashadh 2080

Adjustments 
for NFRS

Restated* As 
at 31 Ashadh 

2080

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 55,727              38,266,865   38,322,592     44,785             17,283,340      17,328,125   
Statutory Balance and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4 -                   3,250,000    3,250,000       -                  2,350,000       2,350,000     
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4 41,516,865        (41,516,865)  -                19,633,340       (19,633,340)     -               
Derivative Financial Instruments -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Other Trading Assets -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Loans and advances to customers 1 685,447,262      7,240,044    692,687,306   497,238,236     5,984,754       503,222,990 
Investment securities -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Current tax assets -                   3,465,484    3,465,484       -                  1,865,640       1,865,640     
Investment property -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Property and Equipment 2 3,382,436         (210,115)      3,172,321       2,690,733        (375,248)         2,315,485     
Goodwill and Intangible assets -                   624,035       624,035         -                  569,486          569,486        
Deferred Tax Assets 3 & 4 -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Other assets 8,017,720.52     (5,773,454)   2,244,266       5,659,410        (4,632,819)      1,026,591     
Total Assets 738,420,011      5,345,993    743,766,003   525,266,505     3,411,812       528,678,317 

 Particulars 
Explanatory 

Notes*
As per Old 

GAAP As at 1st 
Shrawan 2079

Adjustments 
for NFRS

Restated* As 
at 1st 

Shrawan 2079

As per Old 
GAAP As at 31 
Ashadh 2080

Adjustments 
for NFRS

Restated* As 
at 31 Ashadh 

2080
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Due to Nepal Ratsra Bank -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Derivative Financial Instrument -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Deposits from customers 190,010,843      -              190,010,843   125,334,869     -                 125,334,869 
Borrowings 472,253,954      -              472,253,954   332,996,152     -                 332,996,152 
Current Tax Liabilities -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Provisions -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Deferred Tax Liabilities -                   1,094,884    1,094,884       -                  492,097          492,097        
Other liabilities 22,004,854        -              22,004,854     7,861,763        -                 7,861,763     
Debt securities issued -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Subordinated Liabilities -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Total liabilities 684,269,652      1,094,884    685,364,535   466,192,784     492,097          466,684,881 
Equity -              -                 
Share Capital 34,650,000        -              34,650,000     34,650,000       -                 34,650,000   
Share Premium -                   -              -                -                  -                 -               
Retained Earnings 1, 2 & 3 12,889,423        685,880       13,575,303     13,118,511       399,613          13,518,125   
Reserves 1, 2 & 3 6,610,936         3,565,229    10,176,165     11,305,209       2,520,102       13,825,311   
Total Equity 54,150,359        4,251,109    58,401,468     59,073,721       2,919,716       61,993,436   
Total Liabilities and Equity 738,420,011      5,345,993    743,766,003   525,266,505     3,411,812       528,678,317 

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Lahan-8, Siraha
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4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31.03.2080 (the latest period presented under previous GAAP)

Particulars

Explanatory 
Notes*

As per Old GAAP As 
at 31st Ashadh 2080

Adjustments 
for NFRS

Restated* As 
at 31st 

Ashadh 2080
Interest income 1 86,782,577               (1,658,930)      85,123,647    
Interest expense (59,048,253)              -                (59,048,253)   
Net interest income 27,734,324               (1,658,930)      26,075,394    
Fees and commission income 10,160,888               -                10,160,888    
Fees and commission expense 4 -                           (1,956,557)      (1,956,557)     
Net fee and commission income 10,160,888               (1,956,557)      8,204,331      
Net interest and commission income 37,895,212               (3,615,487)      34,279,725    
Net trading income -                           -                -                
Other operating income -                           -                -                
Total operating income 37,895,212               (3,615,487)      34,279,725    
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses (823,030)                   0.00               (823,030)        
Net operating income 38,718,242               (3,615,487)      35,102,756    
Operating expense -                           
Personnel expenses 4 (20,506,104)              (363,466)        (20,869,570)   
Other Operating expenses 4 (10,796,770)              2,766,141       (8,030,629)     
Depreciation and Amortization 1 & 4 -                           (1,029,266)      (1,029,266)     
Operating Profit 7,415,368                 (2,242,077)      5,173,291      
Non-operating Income -                           -                -                
Non-operating expense -                           -                -                
Staff Bonus 4 (363,466)                   363,466         -                
Profit before income tax 7,051,902                 (1,878,611)      5,173,291      
Income tax expense
Current Year Income Tax (2,171,139)                -                (2,171,139)     
Deferred Tax income 3 55,569                      547,219         602,787         
Profit for the period 4,936,332                 (1,331,393)      3,604,939      
Other comprehensive Income -                           -                -                
Total Comprehensive Income for ther period 4,936,332                 (1,331,393)      3,604,939      

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Lahan-8, Siraha
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5. Effect of NFRS adoption for statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31.03.2080 (the latest period presented under previous GAAP)

Particulars
Explanatory 

Notes* Previous GAAP

Effect of 
transition to 

NFRS
Amount as per 

NFRS
Net cash flows from operating activities 1, 2 & 3 (21,763,615)      900,000             (20,863,615)        
Net cash flows from investing activities (117,881)           (0.00)                 (117,881)            
Net cash flows from financing activities (12,971)             (0.00)                 (12,971)              
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (21,894,466)      900,000             (20,994,467)        
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 4 41,572,592       (3,250,000)         38,322,592         

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period        19,678,125          (2,350,000)          17,328,125 

Explanatory Notes*

1

As at 2080.03.31 As at 2079.04.01
- Staff Loans 1,984,590          1,580,951          
- Interest Receivable as per NRB's Directive 4,000,163          5,659,093          
- Interest Income recognized as per NRB's Directive {Increase/(Decrease) in interest receivable)} (1,658,930)         5,659,093          

2

As at 2080.03.31 As at 2079.04.01
Carrying Amount as per GAAP 2,690,733          3,382,436          
Carrying Amount as per NFRS 2,315,485          3,172,321          
Effect of Restatement 375,248             210,115             
Depreciation as per GAAP (Effect on SOPL) 809,584             
Depreciation as per NFRS (Effect on SOPL) 1,029,266          
Difference 219,682             

3

As at 2080.03.31 As at 2079.04.01
Deffered Tax Assets as per GAAP 782,588             727,020             
Deffered Tax Assets as per NFRS (492,097)                     -1,094,884 
Effect of Presentation on date of transition           1,274,685           1,821,904 

4
a. Staff Bonus has been presented under Personnel Expenses
b. Cash and Cash Equivalents have been segregated as well as compiled.
c. Staff Loan has been presented under Loans and Advances from Other Assets.
d. Fixed Assets have been segregated into Property and Equipment & Intangible Assets

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Lahan-8, Siraha

e. Depreciation & Amortization and Fees & Commission Expense previously under Operating Expenses have been presented as 
separate line items.

Loans and Advances: Loans to staff and interest receivable on loans had been classified under "other assets" which have been 
reclassified under "Loans and Advances to Customer". 

Property and Equipment: Depreciation on Property and Equipment has been computed on Straight Line Basis estimating the 
useful lives since the purchase date for the NFRS implementation.

Deferred Tax Assets: Presentation of Property and Equipment as per NFRS has resulted in differences in temporary differences 
measures as per GAAP and those measured as per NFRS. The resulting difference in deferred taxes have been transferred to 
equity. Details are as follows:

Reclassification: Several heads have been reclassfied within Financial Statements such as:



 

Amount %
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 24,080,004                24,080,004                -                    0.00%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3,000,000                  3,000,000                  -                    0.00%
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Derivative Financials Instrument -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Other Trading Assets -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Loans and Advances to MFIs and Cooperatives -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Loans and Advances to Customers 565,281,143              576,428,599              11,147,456         1.97%  Due to booking of AIR, Net off of LLP & Regrouping of Staff Loan 
Investment Securities -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Current Tax Assets 1,199,834                  1,199,834          100.00%  Regrouped 
Investment Property -                            -                            -                    0.00%

Property and Equipment 2,962,389                  4,856,734                  1,894,345          63.95%  Due to recongition of ROU Assets & Reclassification of Intangible Assets 
Goodwill and Intangible Assets -                            855,875                     855,875             100.00%  Due to reclassification 
Deferred Tax Assets -                            1,202,431                  1,202,431          100.00%  Regrouped 
Other Assets 30,358,665                1,513,240                  (28,845,426)        -95.02%  Regrouping of Interest Receivable, Staff Loan, DTA, Current Tax 

Total Assets 625,682,202              613,136,717              (12,545,485)        -2.01%

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Derivative Financials Instrument -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Deposits from Customers 92,144,759                92,144,759                -                    0.00%
Borrowings 445,740,919              445,740,919              -                    0.00%
Current Tax Liabilities -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Provisions -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Deferred Tax Liabilities -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Other Liabilities 32,173,816                15,730,350                (16,443,466)        -51.11%  Regourping of Interest Suspense & LLP 
Debt Securities Issued -                            -                            -                    0.00%  - 
Subordinated Liabilities -                            -                            -                    0.00%  - 

Total Liabilities 570,059,494              553,616,028              (16,443,466)        -2.88%

Equity
Share Capital 34,650,000                34,650,000                -                    0.00%
Share Premium -                            -                    0.00%
Retained Earnings 14,875,485                4,464,539                  (10,410,946)        -69.99%  Due to change in profit 
Reserves 6,097,222                  20,406,149                14,308,927         234.68%  Due to change in profit 

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders 55,622,707                59,520,689                3,897,982          7.01%
Non Controlling Interest -                            -                            -                    
Total Equity 55,622,707                59,520,689                3,897,982          7.01%
Total Equity and Liabilities 625,682,202              613,136,717              (12,545,485)        -2.01%

Amount %
Interest Income 85,019,807                79,770,723                (5,249,085)         -6.17%  Due to accrued rescheduled interest not booked as income 

Interest Expenses 58,131,580                (58,243,324)               (111,744)            -0.19%
 Due to recognition of interest expense previously presented under 
borrowing interest payable as negative balance  

Net Interest Income 26,888,227                21,527,399                (5,360,828)         -19.94%

Fee and Commission Income 10,070,987                8,946,301                  (1,124,686)         -11.17%
 Due to Service Charge Income Reversal - NRB Adjustment, Regrouping of 
income from interest income and other adjustment 

Fee and Commission Expenses (1,054,014)                 (1,054,014)         100.00%  Due to regrouping from other operating expense 
Net Fee and Commission Income 10,070,987                7,892,287                  (2,178,700)         -21.63%
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 36,959,215                29,419,686                (7,539,528)         -20.40%
Net Trading Income -                            -                    0.00%
Other Operating Income -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Total Operating Income 36,959,215                29,419,686                (7,539,528)         -20.40%
Impairment Charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 2,862,682                  3,782,252                  919,571             32.12%  Due to addition of additional loan loss provision 
Net Operating Income 34,096,533                25,637,434                (8,459,099)         -24.81%
Operating Expenses -                            
Personnel Expenses (19,594,099)               (20,384,974)               (790,875)            4.04%  Due to recognition of additional expenses and reclassification 
Other Operating Expenses (8,791,062)                 (5,166,062)                 3,625,000          -41.24%  Due to regrouping & non-recognition of house rent to due to ROU 

Depreciation & Amortization (2,467,044)                 (2,467,044)         0.00%  Due to regrouping from other operating expense and amortization on ROU 
Operating Profit 5,711,371                  (2,380,647)                 (8,092,018)         -141.68%
Non Operating Income -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Non Operating Expenses -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Profit before Income Tax 5,711,371                  (2,380,647)                 (8,092,018)         -141.68%
Income Tax Expenses (1,002,770)                 (1,002,770)         0.00%

Current Tax -                            691,758                     691,758             100.00%  Due to recalculation and availability of profit for income tax computation 
Deferred Tax (1,694,528)                 (1,694,528)         100.00%  Due to recalculation 

Profit for the Period 5,711,371                  (1,377,877)                 (7,089,249)         -124%

Amount %
Profit/(Loss) for the period 5,711,371                  (1,377,877)                 7,089,249          124.13%  Due to final calculation and reasons presented in SOPL 
Other Comprehensive Income -                            -                            -                    0.00%
Total Comprehensive Income 5,711,371                  (1,377,877)                 7,089,249          124.13%

 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
Income

 As per Unaudited 
Financial Statement 

 As per Audited 
Financial Statement 

Variance  Reasons for Variance 

Variance  Reasons for Variance 

Swastik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Quarterly Variance
Lahan-8, Siraha

Statement of Financial Position  As per Unaudited 
Financial Statement 

 As per Audited 
Financial Statement 

Variance  Reasons for Variance 

Statement of Profit and Loss  As per Unaudited 
Financial Statement 

 As per Audited 
Financial Statement 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31stAshadh 2081

1. Reporting Entity
Swastik Laghubitta BittiyaSanstha Limited (‘the Laghubitta”), under Companies Act 2063, was registered
at the company registrar’s office on Ashoj 29, 2075 and obtained operational approval from Nepal Rastra
Bank on Falgun02, 2075, as a “D” class licensed provincial level financial institution (Madhesh Province).
The Laghubitta began its financial operations from Falgun 02, 2075 and currently operates through 12
branch offices. The registered office of the Laghubitta is Lahan 08, Siraha and its service area is limited at
the Provincial Level (Madhesh Province).
The Laghubitta focuses on financial transactions primarily targeting disadvantaged and low-income groups.
Following the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank, its objectives include the economic and social upliftment of
disadvantaged and low-income groups, women empowerment, capital development, financial inclusion,
poverty alleviation, and assisting the country’s overall economic growth. The Laghubitta also encourages
and facilitates various productive activities in rural communities and marginalized sectors.

2. Basis of Preparation
The ûnancial statementshave been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)within the format issued by Nepal
Rastra Bank through NRB Directives to “D” Class Financial institutions, 2079.
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued
by Nepal Rastra Bank in NRB Directives, 2079. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented except otherwise stated.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements
The Laghubitta follows Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1stShrawan and
ending on last day of Ashadh. These financial statements consist three Statement of Financial Position as
of 31stAshadh 2081, 31stAshadh 2080 and 1stShrawan 2079 as required by NFRS-1, First-Time Adoption
of NFRS. The Laghubitta has also presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, two statements of Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows for the
year ended as of 31stAshadh 2081 and 31stAshadh 2080 along with the necessary and related notes.
The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2063.
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 Mangsir 2081 and
recommended for the approval by shareholders in the 6thAnnual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is also the Laghubitta’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded off to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements
The Laghubitta, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Laghubitta is required to make judgments in respect
of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have
been more appropriate.
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The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements
and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed. The NFRS requires the Laghubitta
to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements. The Laghubitta applies estimates
in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and are applied prospectively.
Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever
the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if
any.

2.4.1 Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Laghubitta is satisfied
that the Laghubitta has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this
assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and
future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies
The Laghubitta has applied several amendments to standards for the first time during the year ended
31stAshad 2081.The Laghubitta has prepared the opening statement of financial position as per Nepal
Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) as at 1stShrawan, 2079 (the transition date) by recognizing all assets
and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS, not recognizing the items of assets or liabilities
which are not permitted by NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required by
NFRS and applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

2.6 New Standards Issued but not yet effective
For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosures have been applied.
A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been
issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. NFRSs 2018 has been
pronounced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

2.7 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting
is material.

2.8 Limitation of NFRS Implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to adopt, such exception to
NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for thefollowing material
items in the statement of financial position.

 Investment property is measured at fair value.
 Liabilities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fairvalue.
 Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.Impairment of asset is measured

at fair value and related disposal cost.
3.2 Basis of Consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 “Business
Combination”. The consideration transferred in the acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are
measured at fair value. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain
purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except
if they are related to the issue of debt or equity securities.
The Laghubittadoesn’t have any other entity for consolidation of financial statements.



3.3 Cash and Cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with Bank and Financial Institutions, money at
call and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition
dates that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Laghubitta
in the management of its short-term commitments.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position and are
presented under Note 4.1.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
A. Recognition

The Laghubitta initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Laghubitta
initially recognize loans and advances, deposits and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the
date that they are originated which is the date that the Laghubitta becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB
bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the
Laghubitta commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial
assets are recognized on settlement date.

B. Classification
I. Financial Assets
The Laghubitta classifies the financial assets subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on
the basis of the Laghubitta’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:
1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Laghubitta classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
2. Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial
assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:
a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Laghubitta
makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized
in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive
income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in
other comprehensive income.
II. Financial Liabilities
The Laghubitta classifies its financial liabilitiesas follows:
a) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent
changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.
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b) Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

C. Measurement
i. Initial Measurement
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
in Statement of Profit or Loss.
ii. Subsequent Measurement
A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost
based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or liability classified as measured
at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.
The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or un-collectability.
Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

3.4.1 De-recognition
The Laghubitta derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. A
financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.4.2 Determination of Fair Value
The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
Microfinance follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;
Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of

quoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in
inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable. Investment in Unquoted Equity
Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with certainty
at the reporting date.

3.4.3 Impairment
At each reporting date, the Laghubitta assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s) and that the loss event has an impact on the future
cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Laghubitta on
terms that the Laghubitta would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter
Bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a
group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Laghubitta. In addition, for an investment in an
equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment.



In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Laghubitta considers to restructure loans rather than take
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new
loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original
EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due.
Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.
a) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Laghubitta considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and investment securities
measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Laghubitta first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant and that are not individually significant are assessed collectively.
If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.
All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities are assessed for specific
impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment
that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and investment securities that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances
and investment securities with similar risk characteristics.
Impairment of loans and advances portfolios is based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio
behavior. In assessing collective impairment, the Laghubitta uses historical trends of the probability of
default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as
to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater
or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future
recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.
Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.
In case of impairment of financial assets being loans and advances, the impairment has been considered
as per crave-out issued by ICAN where impairment as per NFRS or as per NRB Directives whichever is
higher.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Laghubitta. If in a subsequent
year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘Non-
Operating Income’.
b) Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income
Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged decline
in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated
in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.
Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank
Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management’s
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisioning
level prescribed in relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for possible losses on loans and advances
at 1.3% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and advances at risk level.
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Particulars Insured Uninsured As at 31st 
Ashadh, 2081 

As at 31st 
Ashadh, 2080 

A. Loans and Advances 565,281,143 - 565,281,143 506,038,105 
i. Performing Loans 519,578,476 - 519,578,476 493,765,947 
Pass 269,070,184 - 269,070,184 340,079,210 
Watchlist 39,130,618 - 39,130,618 51,293,686 
Rescheduled 211,377,674 - 211,377,674 102,393,051 
ii. Non-Performing Loans 45,702,667 - 45,702,667 12,272,158 
Sub-standard 29,221,001 - 29,221,001 4,419,376 
Doubtful 14,107,771 - 14,107,771 3,797,333 
Loss 2,373,895 - 2,373,895 4,055,449 
B. Loan Loss Provision 12,582,121 - 12,582,121 8,799,869 
Pass 874,225 - 874,225 1,105,257 
Watchlist     492,526 -     492,526 641,171 
Rescheduled  2,611,470  -  2,611,470  1,279,914 
Sub-standard 1,886,473 - 1,886,473 276,211 
Doubtful 1,926,464 - 1,926,464 474,667 
Loss    593,474 -    593,474 1,013,862 
Additional 4,197,489 - 4,197,489 4,008,787 
C. Net Loans and Advances 552,699,022   552,699,022 497,238,236 
 Policies Adopted

As per the Carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Laghubitta has measured impairment loss on loan and
advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 58 - 65 and application guidance AG84 - AG92 of NAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

1.1 Trading Assets
Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Laghubitta acquires or incurs principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed
together for short-term profit or position taking. There were no Trading Assets held by Laghubitta during
F.Y. 2080-81.

1.2 Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities
Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are
initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each
reporting date. However, the Laghubitta does not have such instruments during FY 2080-81.

1.3 Property and Equipment
a) Recognition and Measurement
Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
b) Capital Work in Progress
These are expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings and system
development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset
when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses
c) Depreciation
Property and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property on straight-
line method over estimated useful lives. Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Leased assets under
the finance lease are depreciation over the shorter of the lease term and their useful life. Land is not
depreciated. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the date from which the asset is
classified as held for sale or is derecognized. The estimated useful lives of significant items of property
and equipment for current year and comparative periods are as follows:



Class of Assets Useful Life (in years) Useful Life (in days) Depreciation Rate 
Computer & Accessories 6 2190 17% 
Vehicles 7 2555 14% 
Furniture & Fixtures 6 2190 17% 
Equipment and Others 6 2190 17% 
Intangible Assets 8 2920 13% 
Leased Properties Lower of 15 years or Lease Period 
 The capitalized value of software purchase (presented under Intangible Assets) and installation costs are

amortized over a maximum 5-year period or within the ownership period. Assets costing less than NPR
5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. For assets purchased/ sold during the year, depreciation
is provided up to the date of use on pro-rata basis. Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if any.
d) De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of
property and equipment is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.
When replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment, the
remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection costs are capitalized. At
each such capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of inspections is derecognized.
Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

1.1 Intangible Assets/ Goodwill
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. There is no Goodwill held by Laghubitta
during the year.

1.2 Investment Property
Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and
equipment and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired by
the Laghubitta as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date. However, the Laghubitta does
not have Investment Property during the year.

1.3 Investments Securities
The Laghubittadoes not hold any investment securities.

1.4 Income Tax
Income Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized
in profit or loss, except to the extent they relate to the items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
a) Current Tax
Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent
it relates to items recognized directly in equity or OCI in which case it is recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in
respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.
b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax base
of assets and liabilities; and carry forward of unused tax losses. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate
that is expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rate enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which it can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is reasonably/
virtually certain to be realized. Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities are off set if all of the following
conditions met:
a) if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the current tax liabilities and assets;
b) the taxes are levied by the same authority on the same tax entity; and
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c) the entity intends to settle the current tax liabilities and assets on net basis or the tax assets and
liabilities will be realized simultaneously

1.5 Deposits, debts securities issued and subordinated liabilities
a. Deposits
Deposits by members clients are initially recognized at fair value, plus for those financial liabilities not at
fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for measuring the
deposits.
b. Debt Securities Issued
Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at
their amortized cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. However, the Laghubitta does not have such Debt Securities during the year.
c. Subordinated Liabilities
Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the claims
of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Laghubitta does not have any of such
subordinated liabilities.

1.6 Provisions
The Laghubitta recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Laghubitta has a present constructive
or legal obligation that can be reliably measured and it is probable than an outflow of economic benefit will
be required to settle the obligation. A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources
is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Laghubitta
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset
and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.
The contingent liabilities are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items
and are disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of
resources. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Laghubitta from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The Laghubitta does not have such contingent liabilities and onerous contracts during this fiscal
year.

1.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, disposal income, etc. Revenue is
recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Laghubitta and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income
is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition are as below:

a. Interest Income
As per the requirement of NFRS, interest income is recognized in profit or loss using effective interest
method, except for those classified at fair value through profit or loss. Effective Interest Rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The calculation of effective interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received that
are integral part of the effective interest only if considered necessary. Such a chargeis not amortized over
the life of the loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that
would have derived under effective interest method and are recognized directly in statement of profit and
loss.
Interest income presented in Statement of Profit or Loss includes:

 Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate
method, except for loans and advances.
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 As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Laghubitta has not included the fees and points paid or received
in loans and advances that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate
and have recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

 Similarly, as per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Laghubitta has applied the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

 Interest on investment securities measured at fair value is calculated on effective interest rate.
 Interest income on all trading assets are considered to be incidental to the Laghubitta’s trading operations

and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading
income.

 Interest income accrued but not received from Performing, Substandard & Doubtful Loan and Advance till
date has been recognized in the current year interest income.
b. Fee & Commission
Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included
in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management
fee, service charges, commission on remittance transactions and other commission income are
recognized as the related services are performed.
c. Dividend Income
Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
d. Net Trading Income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all
realized and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends. The Laghubitta does not have Net Trading
Income during the financial year.
e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-trading
derivatives held for risk management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships,
financial assets and financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss and non-trading
assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL. The line item includes fair value changes, interest and dividends.

1.8 Interest expense
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits and Borrowings are recognized in profit or
loss using effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be
incidental to the Laghubitta’s trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair
value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

1.9 Employees Benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by
employees. The Laghubitta’s remuneration package includes both short term and long-term benefits and
comprises of Salary, Allowances, Incentives, Overtime allowances, leave encashments, provident fund,
gratuity and annual statutory bonus. The Laghubitta has not applied NAS 19- “Employee Benefits” in its
financial statements.
a. Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.
Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period):

 wages, salaries and social security contributions,
 paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
 profit-sharing and bonuses and
 non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:
i. Defined Contribution Plan
Under defined contribution plans the Laghubitta’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount
that it agrees to contribute to the fund. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
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recognized as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are
rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund
or reduction in future payments is available.
In accordance with law, all employees of the Laghubitta are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Laghubitta contribute monthly at a
pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grades). Laghubitta does not assume any
future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.
ii. Defined Benefit plan
The Laghubitta provides Gratuity Plan as defined benefits to its employees. Theses benefits are post-
employment benefits plans and are paid based on length of service. The Gratuity plan provides for lump
sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while employment or on termination of
employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed years’
service.
The employees of the Laghubitta are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/unutilized leave
subject to a maximum limit. The employees can en-cash unavailed/unutilized leave partially in terms of
Employee Service Byelaws of the Laghubitta. The Laghubittadoes not account for the liability for entire
accumulated outstanding leave balance on actuarial basis.
iii. Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Laghubitta is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Laghubitta
has made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number
of acceptances can be measured reliably.

1.10 Leases
NFRS 16 provides two methods for the time application of the standard; namely full retrospective application
and modified retrospective application. The Laghubitta has adopted modified retrospective approach.
Under the modified retrospective approach, for leases previously classified as operating leases, the lease
liability is measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments and discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset is measured at an
amount equal to lease liability adjusted by operating lease liability as per NAS 17 relating to that lease at
the initial application. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation. The
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.
The discount rate that is used to measure the liability is the incremental borrowing rate for the Laghubitta
as the rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. The incremental borrowing rate is determined
by using a rate that is readily observable, such as the standard borrowing rate for Laghubitta like bank
rate.

1.11 Share Capital and Reserves
The Laghubitta classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in
total assets of the Laghubitta after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of
the Laghubitta and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.
Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are
paid.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.
The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, Capital
Reserve, regulatory reserve, investment adjustment reserve, Client protection fund, Employee trainingfund,
Deferred tax reserve, CSR reserve etc.
a. Regulatory Reserve
The Laghubitta has transferred the income generated from Interest Suspense income to the Regulatory
Reserve. The balance as on date of transition 1stShrawan, 2079, 31stAshadh, 2080 and 31stAshadh, 2081
are as follows:
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Balance 
2079.04.01        3,565,228      -       -        -       -          3,565,228  
2079.80        2,520,103     -       -        -            2,520,103 
2080.81      12,015,598         1,202,431     -        -       -     13,218,028 

Movement 
2079.04.01 3,565,228  - - - - - 3,565,228 
2079.80 (1,045,126) - - - - - 2,520,103 
2080.81 9,495,495         1,202,431 - - - -   13,218,028 
 b. General Reserve Fund

The Laghubitta has opening General Reserve Balance of 60,97,223 for FY 2080/81. Further allocation to
the fund has not been during the year as the lagbhubitta does not have profit for the year.
c. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
The Laghubittahas allocated one percent of Net Profit in Corporate Social Responsibility Fund as per as
theprovision specified in Directive No: 6(14) of The Unified Directives 2079 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank to
“D” Class Financial Institutions. The movement of CSR fund, its sources and utilization on has been
presented in the table.
S.N. Particulars Amount 
A. Balance as on 1stShrawan, 2080    172,555  
B. Addition from 1% of Net Profit*             -   
C. Usage of CSR in:  (107,690) 
i. Financial Illiteracy program    (77,690) 
ii. Free Health Checkup Camp    (30,000) 
D. Closing Balance as on 31stShrawan, 2081 (A+B+C)      64,865  
*Allocation not done during the year due to loss. 

d. Client Protection Fund
The Laghubittahas allocated one percent of Net Profit in Client Protection Fund as per as theprovision
specified in Directive No:4 of The Unified Directives 2079 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank to “D” Class
Financial Institutions. The movement of CPF fund, its sources and utilization on has been presented in the
table.
S.N. Particulars Amount 
A. Balance as on 1stShrawan, 2080  1,099,309 
B. Addition from 1% of Net Profit*             -   
C. Usage of CPF 73,276 
D. Closing Balance as on 31stShrawan, 2081 (A+B+C) 1,026,033  
*Allocation not done during the year due to loss. 

1.1 Earnings per share
The Laghubitta presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Laghubitta by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

1.2 Segment Reporting
The Laghubitta hasidentified the company itself as a reportable segment as the business activities from
which it earns revenues and incurs expenses whose operating results are reviewed by the management
to make decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess its performance.
Segment report include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis.
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cf=a= @)*)÷)*! ;fnsf] ljQLo ljj/0fx? k|sfzg ug{sf] nflu :jLs[lt k|bfg ul/Psf] g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 k|fKt kqsf] k|ltpQ/ M
-s_ lgb]{zgdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifsf] /sd Earmark ul/ nufgL ug{ cfjZos k|lqmof ;'? ul/;lsPsf]

Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .
-v_ lgb]{zgdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd shf{ gf]S;fgL Joj:yf sfod ug{ cfjZos sbd rflnPsf]] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu

cg'/f]w 5 .
-u_ lgb]{zgdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd dfq ;]jf z'Ns lng] k|lqmof ;'? ul/;lsPsf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .
-3_ lgb]{zgdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd s}lkmot gbf]xf]l/g] ul/ sfo{ ;~rfng ul/g] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .
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l6kf]6

zfvf sfof{nox?
    zfvf sfof{no   zfvf k|d'v÷OGrfh{          zfvf sfof{no   zfvf k|d'v÷OGrfh{
!= kftf] ahf/, ;Kt/L >L lbks ltjf/L @= ef]l6of6f]n, l;/fxf >L ef]h]Gb| s'df/ xhf/L
#= nfnk'/, l;/fxf >L rGb| b]j ofbj $= x+;k'/, wg'iff >L :jtGq s'df/ l;+x
%= lkk/f, dxf]Q/L >L/fd s'df/ sfk/ ^= /fduf]kfnk'/, dxf]Q/L >L slkn b]j kf;dfg
&= sfGtL ahf/, dxf]Q/L >L lht]Gb| ofbj *= dx]Gb|gu/, wg'iff >L /f]zg s'df/ s0f{
(= wfFtL ahf/, ;Kt/L >L /fds'df/ dx/f !)= alb{jf;, dxf]Q/L >L ;'idf /fpt
!!= sNof0fk'/, l;/fxf >L 3'/0f ofbj !@= b]jk'/f ?k}7f, w'giff >L uh]Gb| v+u
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